CEMEX SA DE CV Form 424B2 October 20, 2003 Table of Contents

> Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) Registration Nos. 333-11382 333-86700

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To Prospectuses dated August 27, 2003 and April 19, 2002)

25,500,000 American Depositary Shares

CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.

Representing 127,500,000 Ordinary Participation Certificates

\$23.15 per ADS

This prospectus supplement relates to the offering of 25,500,000 American Depositary Shares, or ADSs, each representing five Ordinary Participation Certificates, or CPOs, of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., or CEMEX. Of the 25,500,000 ADSs being offered, 22,414,987 ADSs are being sold by the selling ADS holders identified herein in the form of ADSs and CPOs and 3,085,013 ADSs are being sold on our behalf by a Mexican trust controlled by us in the form of CPOs.

Of the 25,500,000 ADSs that are being offered, 20,282,609 ADSs are being offered in the United States and in other countries outside of Mexico and the equivalent of 5,217,391 ADSs are being offered in a concurrent offering in Mexico in the form of the underlying CPOs. The CPOs offered in Mexico are being offered by means of a separate prospectus and upon similar terms as the offering and may be resold from time to time in the United States while a registration statement is required to be in effect. The selling ADS holders and the trust have granted the underwriters an option to purchase up to 3,825,000 additional ADSs in the form of ADSs or CPOs, as necessary, to cover over-allotments.

The ADSs are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CX, and the CPOs are listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange under the symbol CEMEX.CPO. On October 16, 2003, the last reported sales price of the ADSs on the New York Stock Exchange was \$23.25 per ADS and the last reported sales price of the CPOs on the Mexican Stock Exchange was Ps52.43 per CPO (\$4.66 per CPO at an exchange rate of Ps11.255 per U.S. dollar).

Investing in the ADSs involves risks. See <u>Risk Factors</u> beginning on pages 8 and 5 of the accompanying prospectuses.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectuses are truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

	Per ADS	Total(3)
Public Offering Price	\$ 23.15	\$ 590,325,000
Underwriting Discount	\$ 0.6366	\$ 16,233,300
Proceeds to the selling ADS holders (before expenses)(1)	\$ 22.5134	\$ 504,637,568
Proceeds to the trust for the benefit of CEMEX (before expenses)(2)	\$ 22.5134	\$ 69,454,132

(1) The selling ADS holders have agreed to apply the net proceeds they receive from the offering, as well as the net proceeds they receive from the Mexican offering, against the final forward purchase price we are obligated to pay under forward contracts we entered into with them. They have also agreed to remit to us any proceeds in excess of the amount necessary to satisfy our obligations under these forward contracts. We expect that the aggregate amount payable under these forward contracts at settlement will be approximately \$452.6 million. See Use of Proceeds. We have agreed with the selling ADS holders to pay the expenses of the offering. See Underwriting.

(2) The trust will apply the net proceeds it receives from the Mexican offering to pay to several banks party to forward contracts with us the forward purchase price thereunder in respect of the CPOs sold by the trust in the Mexican offering, with any proceeds in excess of such forward purchase price to be distributed by the trust to us. We expect that such forward purchase price at settlement will be approximately \$66.5 million. See Use of Proceeds.

(3) The amounts listed in the table above do not include any proceeds the selling ADS holders and the trust may receive from any exercise by the underwriters of the over-allotment option granted to them by the selling ADS holders and the trust.

The underwriters expect to deliver the ADSs to purchasers on or about October 21, 2003.

Citigroup

Deutsche Bank Securities

JPMorgan

ABN AMRO Rothschild LLC

Credit Suisse First Boston

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

ING Financial Markets

Merrill Lynch & Co.

October 16, 2003

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

	Page No.		Page No.
INCORDOR LETTON DV DEFERENCE	S-ii	Selected Consolidated Financial Information	
Incorporation by Reference Summary	S-1	Selected Consolidated Financial Information	S-12
The Offering	S-5	Management s Discussion and Analysis of First Half	
<u>Use</u> of Proceeds	S-7	<u>Results</u>	S-16
Selling ADS Holders	S-8	Recent Developments	S-23
<u>Mexican Peso Exchange Rates</u>	S-9	Underwriting	S-32
Market Price Information	S-10	Legal Matters	S-36
CAPITALIZATION	S-11	Experts	S-36

PROSPECTUS DATED AUGUST 27, 2003

Relating to ADSs and CPOs Offered by the Selling ADS Holders

	Page No.		Page No.
About This Prospectus	1	Use of Proceeds	14
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	1	Selling ADS Holders	15
		DESCRIPTION OF OUR COMMON STOCK	16
Incorporation by Reference	1	DESCRIPTION OF OUR CPOS	23
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING		DESCRIPTION OF OUR ADSS	27
Statements	2	INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	36
The Offering	3	PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	40
CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.	6	VALIDITY OF THE SECURITIES	41
Risk Factors	8	Experts	41

PROSPECTUS DATED APRIL 19, 2002

RELATING TO CPOS OFFERED BY THE TRUST ON OUR BEHALF

	Page No.		Page No.
About This Prospectus	1	DESCRIPTION OF OUR COMMON STOCK	10
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	1	DESCRIPTION OF OUR CPOS	15
		DESCRIPTION OF OUR ADSS	19
Incorporation by Reference	1	DESCRIPTION OF OUR APPRECIATION	
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING	2	WARRANTS	28
Statements			

		Description of Our ADWs	34
CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.	3	PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	40
Risk Factors	5	VALIDITY OF THE SECURITIES	41
Use of Proceeds	9	Experts	41

Neither we nor the selling ADS holders have authorized any dealer, salesperson or other person to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectuses. You should not rely on any unauthorized information. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectuses do not offer to sell or buy any securities in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful. The information in this prospectus supplement is current as of the date on the cover.

References in this prospectus supplement to CEMEX, we, us or our refer to CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., a Mexican corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries.

S-i

References in this prospectus supplement to U.S.\$, \$ and Dollars are to U.S. Dollars, and, unless otherwise indicated, references to Ps and Pes are to constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003.

Unless we specifically state otherwise, the information in this prospectus supplement does not take into account the sale of up to 3,825,000 ADSs in the form of ADSs and CPOs, which the underwriters have the option to purchase from the selling ADS holders and the trust to cover over-allotments.

The CPOs underlying the ADSs being sold pursuant to this prospectus supplement have been registered with the Securities and Special Sections of the National Securities Registry (*Registro Nacional de Valores*) maintained by the Mexican National Banking and Securities Commission (*Comisión Nacional Bancaria y de Valores*), or the CNBV. Registration of the CPOs with the Securities and Special Sections of the National Securities Registry maintained by the CNBV does not imply any certification as to the investment quality of the CPOs, the solvency of CEMEX or the accuracy or completeness of the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectuses.

This document is only being distributed to and is only directed at (i) persons who are outside the United Kingdom or (ii) to investment professionals falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2001 (all such persons together being referred to as relevant persons). The ADSs are only available to, and any invitation, offer or agreement to subscribe, purchase or otherwise acquire such ADSs will be engaged in only with, relevant persons. Any person who is not a relevant person should not act or rely on this document or any of its contents.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus supplement. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed by us with the SEC. Any information referenced this way is considered part of this prospectus supplement, and any information that we file after the date of this prospectus supplement with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. Any statement contained in a document filed by us with the SEC before the date of this prospectus supplement and incorporated by reference shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this prospectus supplement by any contradictory statement in this prospectus supplement, but only to the extent such statement is contradictory. We incorporate by reference into this prospectus supplement the following documents:

our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed with the SEC on April 8, 2003, as amended by Amendment No. 1 thereto on Form 20-F/A, filed with the SEC on April 25, 2003;

our current reports on Form 6-K furnished to the SEC on August 25, 2003, October 2, 2003, October 15, 2003 and October 16, 2003; and

the descriptions of our ADSs, CPOs, series A shares and series B shares contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A (SEC File No. 1-14946), filed with the SEC on September 10, 1999, and any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such descriptions.

In addition, any future filings on Form 20-F made with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, after the date of this prospectus supplement and prior to the termination of the offering of the ADSs, and any future reports on Form 6-K furnished by us to the SEC during such period or portions thereof that are identified in such forms as being incorporated into the registration statements of which the accompanying prospectuses form a part, shall be considered to be incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference and shall be considered a part of this prospectus supplement from the date of filing of such documents.

We will provide without charge upon written or oral request, a copy of any and all of the information that has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and that has not been delivered with this prospectus supplement. Requests should be directed to Abraham Rodríguez, Investor Relations, CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., Av. Ricardo Margáin Zozaya #325, Colonia Valle del Campestre, Garza García, Nuevo León, México 66265, telephone: +011-5281-8888-4262 or toll-free: 1-800-317-6000.

S-ii

SUMMARY

This summary highlights the information contained elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectuses as well as in the documents incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference. This summary does not contain all the information you should consider before making a decision to purchase any ADSs or CPOs. You should read the entire prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectuses and the documents incorporated in this prospectus supplement carefully.

CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.

Incorporated in 1920, CEMEX is the third largest cement company in the world, based on installed capacity as of June 30, 2003 of approximately 80.9 million tons. We are one of the world s largest traders of cement and clinker, having traded over 10.2 million tons of cement and clinker in 2002. We are a holding company engaged, through our operating subsidiaries, primarily in the production, distribution, marketing and sale of cement, ready-mix concrete and clinker. We are a global cement manufacturer with operations in North, Central and South America, Europe, the Caribbean, Asia and Africa. As of June 30, 2003, we had worldwide assets of Ps174.7 billion (U.S.\$16.7 billion). On October 16, 2003, we had an equity market capitalization of approximately Ps84.9 billion (U.S.\$7.5 billion at an exchange rate of Ps11.255 per U.S. dollar).

We believe that we are one of the most efficient cement producers in the world. We believe we have achieved this competitive advantage through our significant utilization of technology throughout our entire organization, our superior operating practices, our turnaround expertise in newly acquired operations and our size as one of the largest cement companies in the world.

As of June 30, 2003, our main cement production facilities were located in Mexico, Spain, Venezuela, Colombia, the United States, Egypt, the Philippines, Thailand, Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, Panama, Nicaragua and Puerto Rico. As of June 30, 2003, our assets, cement plants and installed capacity, on an unconsolidated basis, were as set forth below. Installed capacity, which refers to theoretical annual production capacity, represents gray cement equivalent capacity, which counts each ton of white cement capacity as approximately two tons of gray cement capacity. It also includes our proportional interest in the installed capacity of companies in which we hold a minority interest.

		As of June 30, 2003			
		Number of Assets Cement			
	Assets				
	(in billions of constant Pesos)	Plants	(millions of tons per annum)		
North America					
Mexico	Ps57.1	15	27.2		
United States Europe, Asia and Africa	42.8	12	13.6		
Spain	25.2	8	10.8		
Asia	12.4	4	10.9		
Egypt	4.0	1	4.7		

South America, Central America and the Caribbean

Table of Contents

Venezuela	8.0	3	4.6
Colombia	5.2	5	4.8
Central America and the Caribbean	11.1	5	4.1
Cement and Clinker Trading Assets and Other Operations	76.5		

In the above table, Asia includes our Asian subsidiaries, and, for purposes of the columns labeled Assets and Installed Capacity, includes our 25.5% interest, as of June 30, 2003, in PT Semen Gresik, or Gresik, an Indonesian cement producer. In addition to the three cement plants owned by our Asian subsidiaries,

Gresik operated four cement plants with an installed capacity of 17.2 million tons, as of June 30, 2003. In the above table, Central America and the Caribbean includes our subsidiaries in Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, Panama, Nicaragua, Puerto Rico and other assets in the Caribbean region. In the above table, Cement and Clinker Trading Assets and Other Operations includes in the column labeled Assets our 11.9% interest in Cementos Bio Bio, a Chilean cement producer having three cement plants with an installed capacity of approximately 2.2 million tons at June 30, 2003, and intercompany accounts receivable of CEMEX (the parent company only) in the amount of Ps38.4 billion, which would be eliminated if these assets were calculated on a consolidated basis.

During the last decade, we embarked on a major geographic expansion program to diversify our cash flows and enter markets whose economic cycles within the cement industry largely operate independently from that of Mexico and which offer long-term growth potential. We have built an extensive network of marine and land-based distribution centers and terminals that give us marketing access around the world.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, our net sales, before eliminations resulting from consolidation, were divided among the countries in which we operate as follows:

Executive Offices

We are a Mexican corporation with our principal executive offices located at Av. Ricardo Margáin Zozaya #325, Colonia Valle del Campestre, Garza García, Nuevo León, México 66265. Our main phone number is +011-5281-8888-8888.

The Offering

The Offering	25,500,000 ADSs, each representing five CPOs. Of the 25,500,000 ADSs being offered, 22,414,987 ADSs are being sold by the selling ADS holders identified herein in the form of ADSs and CPOs and 3,085,013 ADSs are being sold on our behalf by a Mexican trust controlled by us in the form of CPOs. Of the 25,500,000 ADSs being offered, 20,282,609 ADSs are being offered in the United States and in other countries outside of Mexico and the equivalent of 5,217,391 ADSs are being offered in a concurrent offering in Mexico in the form of the underlying CPOs. The CPOs offered in Mexico are being offered by means of a separate prospectus and upon similar terms as this offering. This offering and the Mexican offering are sometimes referred to herein as the combined offerings.
The Selling ADS Holders	Citibank, N.A., ING Bank, N.V., Deutsche Bank AG London, Credit Suisse First Boston International, ABN AMRO Special Corporate Services B.V., Société Générale and JPMorgan Chase Bank (through its affiliate, J.P. Morgan GT Corporation). These banks acquired the ADSs being sold by them hereunder pursuant to forward transactions we entered into with them, and as stock dividends subsequently received by them in respect of the ADSs underlying the forward contracts. These banks are sometimes referred to herein as the selling ADS holders.
The Trust	A Mexican trust created to sell CPOs on our behalf in the Mexican offering. The CPOs being sold on our behalf by the trust were transferred to the trust in connection with the unwinding of several forward transactions we entered into with several banks. The trust will use the proceeds it receives in the Mexican offering to pay to such banks the forward purchase price in respect of the CPOs sold by the trust in the Mexican offering, with any proceeds in excess of such forward purchase price to be distributed by the trust to us. See Use of Proceeds. This Mexican trust is sometimes referred to herein as the trust.
The ADSs	Each ADS represents five CPOs. Each CPO represents two shares of our series A common stock, with no par value, or A shares, and one share of our series B common stock, with no par value, or B shares. The ADSs are evidenced by ADRs. The ADSs have been issued pursuant to a second amended and restated deposit agreement dated as of August 10, 1999, between us, Citibank, N.A., as depositary, and all holders and beneficial owners from time to time of ADSs evidenced by ADRs issued thereunder.
Use of Proceeds	The selling ADS holders will receive the proceeds of sales of the ADSs and CPOs being sold by them in the combined offerings, and the selling ADS holders have agreed to apply such proceeds against the final forward purchase price we are obligated to pay under

forward contracts we entered into with them. We expect that the aggregate amount payable by us under these forward contracts at settlement will be approximately \$452.6 million. The selling ADS holders have also agreed to remit to us any proceeds they receive from the combined offerings in excess of the amount necessary to satisfy our obligations under these forward contracts.

The trust will receive the proceeds of sales of the CPOs being sold on our behalf by the trust in the Mexican offering. As described above under The Trust, the trust will use the proceeds it receives from the Mexican offering to pay to the banks that transferred the CPOs to the trust the forward purchase price in respect of the CPOs sold by the trust in the Mexican offering, with any proceeds in excess of such forward purchase price to be distributed by the trust to us. We expect that such forward purchase price at settlement will be approximately \$66.5 million.

Subject to market conditions, we intend to use a portion of the proceeds of the combined offerings distributed to us by the trust and remitted to us by the selling ADS holders to conduct a cash tender offer for all or a portion of our outstanding appreciation warrants (including appreciation warrants represented by American Depositary Warrants). If we proceed with the appreciation warrant tender offer, we intend to offer no less than Ps5.10 per appreciation warrant, the closing price of the appreciation warrants on the Mexican Stock Exchange on September 30, 2003, and no more than the theoretical value of an appreciation warrant on the date of the tender offer, calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model with a volatility of 35%, a risk-free rate of 1.3%, a dividend yield of 0% and the closing price of the CPOs on the date of the tender offer or that its final terms will not differ from those set forth above. We intend to use the remaining portion of such proceeds for general corporate purposes, including working capital and the repayment of debt.

Listing

The ADSs are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CX. The CPOs are listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange under the symbol CEMEX.CPO.

THE OFFERING

The ADSs and CPOs Being Sold by the Selling ADS Holders

As discussed in the accompanying prospectus relating to the ADSs offered by the selling ADS holders, the ADSs being sold by the selling ADS holders in the form of ADSs and CPOs were initially acquired by the selling ADS holders pursuant to forward transactions we entered into with them in December 1999 in order to hedge our obligations under appreciation warrants we issued at that time and as a result of stock dividends subsequently received by the selling ADS holders in respect of those ADSs. In connection with the originally scheduled termination of those forward transactions in December 2002, we agreed with the selling ADS holders to settle those forward transactions for cash and simultaneously entered into new forward transactions, with a December 2003 maturity, with the selling ADS holders with respect to the underlying ADSs on similar terms to the original forward transactions. As a condition of entering into these forward contracts, we agreed to keep continuously effective a registration statement, of which the accompanying prospectus relating to the ADSs offered by the selling ADS holders is a part, that registers these ADSs for resale by the selling ADS holders.

We have agreed with the selling ADS holders to terminate these forward contracts and unwind the related forward transactions prior to their scheduled termination. In connection with the early termination of these forward contracts, we have agreed with the selling ADS holders to settle the forward transactions for cash, and the selling ADS holders will sell the ADSs underlying the forward contracts, as described below, in order to pay us the cash settlement amount payable in connection with the early termination agreement.

As of September 30, 2003, there were 25,457,378 ADSs underlying these forward contracts. The selling ADS holders will sell a total of 22,414,987 ADSs, representing 112,074,935 CPOs, in the combined offerings in the form of ADSs and CPOs pursuant to the registration statement, of which the accompanying prospectus relating to the ADSs offered by the selling ADS holders is a part. Of the 22,414,987 ADSs that the selling ADS holders are selling, 20,282,609 ADSs are being offered in the United States and in other countries outside of Mexico and the equivalent of 2,132,378 ADSs are being offered in the Mexican offering in the form of the underlying CPOs.

The selling ADS holders have agreed to apply the proceeds they receive from the combined offerings against the final forward purchase price we are obligated to pay under these forward contracts. The selling ADS holders have also agreed to remit to us any proceeds from the combined offerings in excess of the amount necessary to satisfy our obligations under these forward contracts. We expect that the aggregate amount payable by us under these forward contracts at settlement will be approximately U.S.\$452.6 million. We intend for any ADSs underlying these forward contracts that are not sold in the combined offerings or pursuant to the exercise by the underwriters of the over-allotment option to be sold by the selling ADS holders to banks or other financial institutions in connection with new forward transactions. The selling ADSs holders have agreed to remit to us any proceeds from the sale of such remaining ADSs in excess of the amount necessary to satisfy our obligations under the forward contracts.

The CPOs Being Sold by the Trust on Our Behalf

In order to cover our obligations to deliver CPOs or ADSs upon the future exercise of options granted under our stock option plans, from time to time we enter into forward transactions in our CPOs or ADSs with banks and other financial institutions. We entered into several of these forward transactions with Dresdner Bank AG, The Bank of Nova Scotia and Credit Lyonnais New York Branch between October 2002 and January 2003, having different maturities from October 2003 to January 2004. Under these forward contracts, these banks agreed to sell to us on the respective maturity dates of these forward contracts an aggregate of 37,001,700 CPOs, which these banks purchased in open market transactions, for an aggregate forward purchase price of approximately U.S.\$179.2 million, or the forward notional amount, which forward

notional amount has since increased to U.S.\$194.5 million. As a result of stock dividends through June 2003, the aggregate number of CPOs subject to

these forward contracts increased to 40,168,692 CPOs. Upon liquidation and at our option, these forward contracts provide for physical settlement or net cash settlement. The forward settlement price payable at any time under these forward contracts is equal to the present value of the forward notional amount. These forward contracts had forward settlement prices per CPO at October 16, 2003, ranging from U.S.\$4.31 per CPO to U.S.\$5.26 per CPO. At maturity, if these forward contracts are not settled or replaced, or if we default on these agreements, these banks may sell the CPOs underlying these forward contracts. We did not enter into any registration rights agreement with respect to these forward contracts, and, were it not for the contemplated sales by the trust on our behalf in the combined offerings, any sales of these CPOs by these banks would be required to be made pursuant to an exemption from registration.

We have agreed with these banks to terminate a portion of these forward contracts prior to their scheduled termination in order to reduce the number of CPOs subject to our forward transactions hedging our obligations under our stock option plans. In connection with the early termination of a portion of these forward contracts, these banks transferred the 40,168,692 CPOs underlying these forward contracts to a Mexican trust created to sell CPOs on our behalf in the Mexican offering.

As of October 16, 2003, there were 40,168,692 CPOs underlying these forward contracts, comprised of 22,564,959 CPOs underlying the Dresdner Bank AG forward contract, 11,983,840 CPOs underlying the The Bank of Nova Scotia forward contract and 5,619,893 CPOs underlying the Credit Lyonnais New York Branch forward contract. As of October 16, 2003, the aggregate amount payable by us under these forward contracts was approximately U.S.\$194.5 million. The trust will sell on our behalf a total of 3,085,013 ADSs in the form of 15,425,065 CPOs in the Mexican offering pursuant to the registration statement, of which the accompanying prospectus relating to the CPOs offered by the trust on our behalf is a part. If the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option, the trust will sell on our behalf up to an additional 782,609 ADSs in the form of 3,913,045 CPOs in Mexico.

The trust will use the proceeds it receives in the Mexican offering to pay the forward purchase price in respect of the CPOs sold by it, which we expect at settlement will be approximately \$66.5 million, with any proceeds in excess of such forward purchase price to be distributed by the trust to us. We intend for any CPOs underlying these forward contracts that are not sold in the combined offerings or pursuant to the exercise by the underwriters of the over-allotment option to be returned by the trust to the applicable banks and for the forward contracts with those banks to remain in effect with respect to the returned CPOs.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the proceeds from the combined offerings will be approximately \$572.8 million, or approximately \$658.9 million if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in full, based upon the public offering price per ADS of \$23.15 and after deducting the underwriting discounts and commissions and the estimated expenses of the combined offerings.

The selling ADS holders will receive proceeds of approximately \$504.6 million from sales of the 22,414,987 ADSs being sold by them in the combined offerings, and the selling ADS holders have agreed to apply such proceeds against the final forward purchase price we are obligated to pay under forward contracts we entered into with them. We expect that the aggregate amount payable by us under these forward contracts at settlement will be approximately \$452.6 million. The selling ADS holders have also agreed to remit to us any proceeds from the combined offerings in excess of the amount necessary to satisfy our obligations under these forward contracts, which we expect will be approximately \$52.0 million.

The trust will receive proceeds of approximately \$69.5 million from sales of the 3,085,013 ADSs being sold on our behalf by the trust in the Mexican offering in the form of CPOs. The trust will use such proceeds to pay the forward purchase price in respect of the CPOs sold by it in the Mexican offering, which we expect at settlement will be approximately \$66.5 million. The trust will distribute any proceeds in excess of such forward purchase price to us, which we expect will be approximately \$3.0 million.

We expect that the aggregate proceeds remitted to us by the selling ADS holders and distributed to us by the trust will be approximately \$55.0 million. We will pay our estimated offering expenses of approximately \$1.3 million from this amount, resulting in net proceeds to us of approximately \$53.7 million.

Subject to market conditions, we intend to use a portion of the proceeds of the combined offerings distributed to us by the trust and remitted to us by the selling ADS holders to conduct a cash tender offer for all or a portion of our outstanding appreciation warrants (including appreciation warrants represented by American Depositary Warrants). If we proceed with the appreciation warrant tender offer, we intend to offer no less than Ps5.10 per appreciation warrant, the closing price of the appreciation warrants on the Mexican Stock Exchange on September 30, 2003, and no more than the theoretical value of an appreciation warrant on the date of the tender offer, calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model with a volatility of 35%, a risk-free rate of 1.3%, a dividend yield of 0% and the closing price of the CPOs on the date of the tender offer. We cannot assure you that we will proceed with the appreciation warrant tender offer or that its final terms will not differ from those set forth above. We intend to use the remaining portion of such proceeds for general corporate purposes, including working capital and the repayment of debt.

SELLING ADS HOLDERS

The following table sets forth information with respect to beneficial ownership of our common stock by each of the selling ADS holders as of September 30, 2003 as adjusted to give effect to the sale of ADSs and CPOs by the selling ADS holders in the combined offerings. The following information has been obtained from the selling ADS holders.

Number of		Beneficial ownership of		Beneficial ownership of	
		CEMEX cor	nmon stock	CEMEX co	CEMEX common stock
	shares of	prior to the	offering(1)	after the o	offering(2)
Number of ADSs that	CEMEX		Percentage		Percentage
may be	common stock represented by		of	Number of	of
sold	ADSs that	Number of	outstanding	shares of	outstanding
in the	may be sold in	shares of common	common	common	common
offering	the offering	stock	stock(3)	stock	stock(3)
4,183,162	62,747,430	71,264,145	1.47%	8,516,715	*
4,183,162	62,747,430	71,264,145	1.47%	8,516,715	*
4,183,162	62,747,430	71,264,145	1.47%	8,516,715	*
3,609,331	54,139,965	61,488,390	1.27%	7,348,425	*
2,406,221	36,093,315	40,992,270	*	4,898,955	*
1,924,975	28,874,625	32,793,795	*	3,919,170	*
1,924,974	28,874,610	32,793,780	*	3,919,170	*
	ADSs that may be sold in the offering 4,183,162 4,183,162 4,183,162 3,609,331 2,406,221 1,924,975	shares of Number of ADSs that CEMEX may be common stock represented by sold ADSs that in the may be sold in offering the offering 4,183,162 62,747,430 4,183,162 62,747,430 4,183,162 62,747,430 4,183,162 54,139,965 2,406,221 36,093,315 1,924,975 28,874,625	Number of shares of prior to the CEMEX constants Number of ADSs that CEMEX nay be CEMEX represented by Number of sold ADSs that in the may be sold in offering the offering stock 500 4,183,162 62,747,430 4,183,162 62,747,430 4,183,162 62,747,430 4,183,162 62,747,430 4,183,162 62,747,430 4,183,162 62,747,430 71,264,145 3,609,331 54,139,965 61,488,390 2,406,221 36,093,315 40,992,270 1,924,975 28,874,625 32,793,795	Number of shares ofCEMEX common stockNumber of ADSs thatprior to the offering(1)Number of ADSs thatCEMEXmay becommon stock represented byofsoldADSs thatoutstanding shares of commonin themay be sold inshares of commonofferingthe offeringstockstock(3)4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%4,183,16262,747,43071,264,1451.47%3,609,33154,139,96561,488,3901.27%2,406,22136,093,31540,992,270*1,924,97528,874,62532,793,795*	Number of shares of CEMEX common stock CEMEX common stock Number of ADSs that CEMEX prior to the offering(1) after the offer the of

* Less than 1.0%.

(1) Includes, with respect to each selling ADS holder, the number of ADSs such selling ADS holder has received as stock dividends in respect of the ADSs underlying the forward contract we entered into with such selling ADS holder.

(2) If the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option, Citibank, N.A., ING Bank, N.V., and Deutsche Bank AG London will each sell up to an additional 567,781 ADSs, Credit Suisse First Boston International will sell up to an additional 489,895 ADSs, ABN AMRO Special Corporate Services B.V. will sell up to an additional 326,597 ADSs and Société Générale and J.P. Morgan GT Corporation will each sell up to an additional 261,278 ADSs, which in each case constitutes up to all the remaining shares of CEMEX common stock owned by each such selling ADS holder. As described above under The Offering, we intend for any ADSs underlying the forward contracts we entered into with the selling ADS holders that are not sold in the combined offerings or pursuant to the exercise by the underwriters of the over-allotment option to be sold by the selling ADS holders to banks or other financial institutions in connection with new forward transactions.

(3) Based on 4,857,943,911 shares of our common stock outstanding as of September 30, 2003.

(4) Although J.P. Morgan GT Corporation was not a party to the forward contracts, it received these ADSs from its affiliate, JPMorgan Chase Bank, one of the banks party to the forward contracts.

Each of Citibank, N.A., ING Bank, N.V., Deutsche Bank AG London, Credit Suisse First Boston International, ABN AMRO Special Corporate Services B.V., Société Générale, J.P. Morgan GT Corporation and their respective affiliated companies and/or individuals may, from time to time, own or have positions in, or options on, our securities and may also provide advisory services and/or lending or other credit services to us.

In addition, each of the selling ADS holders are affiliates of brokers or dealers, as such terms are defined in Section 3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. However, each such selling ADS holder purchased the ADSs to be resold by it pursuant to this prospectus supplement in the ordinary course of business, and at the time of such purchase, no selling ADS holder had any agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute such ADSs. However, in connection with the offering, affiliates of the selling ADS holders have entered into underwriting agreements with the trust and the selling ADS holders.

MEXICAN PESO EXCHANGE RATES

Mexico has had no exchange control system in place since the dual exchange control system was abolished on November 11, 1991.

The Mexican Peso has floated freely in foreign exchange markets since December 1994, when the Mexican Central Bank (*Banco de México*) abandoned its prior policy of having an official devaluation band. Since then, the Peso has been subject to substantial fluctuations in value. The Peso depreciated against the Dollar by 22.7% in 1998, appreciated against the Dollar by 3.9% in 1999, depreciated against the Dollar by 1.16% in 2000, appreciated against the Dollar by 4.68% in 2001, depreciated against the Dollar by 13% in 2002 and depreciated against the Dollar by 5.99% in the first nine months of 2003. These percentages are based on the exchange rate that we use for accounting purposes, or the CEMEX accounting rate. The CEMEX accounting rate represents the average of three different exchange rates that are provided to us by Banco Nacional de México, S.A., or Banamex. For any given date, the CEMEX accounting rate may differ from the noon buying rate for Pesos in New York City published by the U.S. Federal Reserve Bank of New York. We cannot predict the value of the Peso or assure you that the Mexican government will not establish new exchange controls in the future.

The following table sets forth, for the periods and dates indicated, the end-of-period, average and high and low points of the CEMEX accounting rate as well as the noon buying rate for Pesos, expressed in Pesos per U.S.\$1.00.

	CEMEX Accounting Rate					Noon Buyi	ng Rate	
	End of			End of				
	Period	Average(1)	High	Low	Period	Average(1)	High	Low
Year ended December 31,								
1998	9.900	9.180	10.653	8.073	9.901	9.245	10.630	8.040
1999	9.510	9.547	10.607	9.263	9.480	9.562	10.600	9.240
2000	9.620	9.461	10.098	9.189	9.618	9.459	10.087	9.183
2001	9.170	9.332	9.988	8.954	9.156	9.337	9.972	8.946
2002	10.380	9.755	10.350	9.016	10.425	9.664	10.425	9.000
2003 (through September 30, 2003)	11.002	10.717	11.224	10.101	11.003	10.718	11.235	10.113
2003								
April			10.772	10.288			10.770	10.308
May			10.396	10.101			10.424	10.113
June			10.805	10.243			10.739	10.244
July			10.591	10.338			10.585	10.339
August			11.045	10.586			11.060	10.590
September			11.057	10.773			11.040	10.771

(1) The average of the CEMEX accounting rate or the noon buying rate for Pesos, as applicable, on the last day of each full month during the relevant period.

The noon buying rate for Pesos on October 16, 2003 was Ps11.255 to U.S.\$1.00 and the CEMEX accounting rate was Ps11.288 to U.S.\$1.00.

The Mexican government does not currently restrict the ability of Mexicans or others to convert Pesos to Dollars, or vice versa. The Mexican Central Bank has consistently made foreign currency available to Mexican private sector entities, such as CEMEX, to meet their foreign currency obligations. Nevertheless, if renewed shortages of foreign currency occur, the Mexican Central Bank may not continue its practice of making foreign currency available to private sector companies and we may not be able to purchase the foreign currency we need to service our

foreign currency obligations without substantial additional cost.

For a discussion of the financial treatment of our operations conducted in other currencies, see Selected Consolidated Financial Information.

MARKET PRICE INFORMATION

Our CPOs are listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange under the symbol CEMEX.CPO. Our ADSs, each of which represents five CPOs, are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CX. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the reported highest and lowest market quotations in nominal Pesos for CPOs on the Mexican Stock Exchange and the high and low sales prices in Dollars for ADSs on the New York Stock Exchange.

Calendar Period	CPOs(1)		ADSs(2)		
	High	Low	High	Low	
Yearly					
1998	Ps 43.40	Ps 16.00			
1999	53.10	17.90	U.S.\$ 28.13	U.S.\$ 19.25	
2000	53.80	32.50	28.75	17.19	
2001	51.65	34.50	28.30	17.63	
2002	61.82	39.10	33.00	19.25	
Quarterly					
2001					
First quarter	45.34	34.50	23.48	17.63	
Second quarter	49.90	39.25	27.75	20.67	
Third quarter	51.65	37.58	28.30	19.80	
Fourth quarter	49.00	38.61	26.85	20.35	
2002					
First quarter	55.01	43.90	30.37	24.00	
Second quarter	61.82	51.50	33.00	25.70	
Third quarter	53.80	40.25	27.27	19.71	
Fourth quarter 2003	48.64	39.10	24.07	19.25	
First quarter	48.66	35.65	23.35	16.31	
Second quarter	48.58	37.62	23.10	17.44	
Third quarter	57.51	47.05	26.12	22.46	
Monthly 2003					
April	47.50	37.62	22.97	17.44	
May	47.10	42.00	23.10	20.66	
June	48.58	44.90	22.85	21.61	
July	50.20	46.20	23.68	22.06	
August	55.05	48.81	25.18	23.01	
September	57.70	54.00	26.20	24.65	
October (through October 16, 2003)	56.46	51.75	25.49	23.21	

Source: Based on data of the Mexican Stock Exchange and the NYSE.

As of December 31, 2002, approximately 93.57% of our outstanding share capital was represented by CPOs. (1)(2)

The ADSs began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on September 15, 1999.

On October 16, 2003, the last reported closing price for CPOs on the Mexican Stock Exchange was Ps52.43 per CPO and the last reported closing price for ADSs on the New York Stock Exchange was U.S.\$23.25 per ADS.

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our consolidated indebtedness and capitalization as of June 30, 2003 (i) on an actual basis and (ii) as adjusted to give effect to the sale of the 25,500,000 ADSs in the form of ADSs and CPOs by the selling ADS holders and the trust in the combined offerings at the public offering price of \$23.15 per ADS and the application of the estimated net proceeds as described under Use of Proceeds, assuming such sale and application had been completed on such date and assuming no exercise by the underwriters of any over-allotment options. No effect is given to (i) the potential cash tender offer for our outstanding appreciation warrants described under Use of Proceeds or (ii) the redemption of our U.S.\$650 million of outstanding preferred equity on October 15, 2003 and the intended use of proceeds of loans issued under the new U.S.\$1.15 billion senior unsecured term loan facility executed by our Dutch subsidiary on October 15, 2003 to repay the short term debt incurred to redeem the preferred equity and to repay senior debt, all as described under Recent Developments. In addition, although we intend for any ADSs not sold by the selling ADS holders in the combined offerings to be sold to banks or other financial institutions in connection with new forward transactions, for purposes of the following table, we assume that such remaining ADSs will revert to us.

The financial information set forth below is based on information derived from our unaudited consolidated financial statements included in our current report on Form 6-K furnished to the SEC on October 2, 2003, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, which have been prepared in accordance with Mexican GAAP. In accordance with Mexican GAAP, all Peso amounts set forth below have been adjusted for inflation and are restated in Pesos with constant purchasing power as of June 30, 2003. For further information about our financial presentation, see Selected Consolidated Financial Information.

	Actual	As Adjusted	
	(in millions of	f constant Pesos)	
Cash and temporary investments(1)	Ps 7,436	Ps 7,998	
Other receivables(2)	5,223	4,159	
Short-term debt(3)			
Payable in Dollars	12,563	12,563	
Payable in Japanese Yen	6,220	6,220	
Payable in Euros	1,885	1,885	
Payable in Mexican Pesos	135	135	
Payable in Egyptian Pounds	90	90	
Payable in other currencies	19	19	
Total short-term debt	20,912	20,912	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Long-term debt			
Payable in Dollars	31,349	31,349	
Payable in Euros	5,766	5,766	
Payable in Japanese Yen	2,441	2,441	
Payable in Egyptian Pounds	240	240	
Payable in Mexican Pesos	207	207	
Total long-term debt	40,003	40,003	
Total debt	60,915	60,915	
Stockholders equity(4)			
Majority interest	62,810	62,308	

As of June 30, 2003

Minority interest	12,166	12,166
Total stockholders equity	74,975	74,474
Total capitalization(5)	Ps 135,890	Ps 135,389

⁽¹⁾ The approximately Ps562 million increase in cash and temporary investments results from the difference between (i) the approximately Ps576 million of proceeds from the combined offerings to be remitted to us by the selling ADS holders and the trust and (ii) the approximately Ps14 million of offering expenses to be incurred by us.

Other than as discussed herein, there has been no material change in our capitalization since June 30, 2003.

⁽²⁾ The approximately Ps1,064 million decrease in other receivables represents the application of our prepayment of obligations under the forward contracts with the selling ADS holders.

⁽³⁾ Includes current portion of long-term debt.

⁽⁴⁾ Majority interest in stockholders equity is increased by the approximately Ps562 million of cash to be received by us and is reduced by the approximately Ps1,064 million application of our prepayment, resulting in a net decrease in majority interest stockholders equity of approximately Ps502 million.

⁽⁵⁾ As used in this table, total capitalization equals total debt plus total stockholders equity.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The financial data set forth below as of and for each of the five years ended December 31, 2002 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The financial data set forth below as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 and for each of the three years ended December 31, 2002, have been derived from, and should be read in conjunction with and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in our annual report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement.

The financial data set forth below for the six months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 have been derived from, and should be read in conjunction with and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, the unaudited consolidated financial statements included in our current report on Form 6-K furnished to the SEC on October 2, 2003, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. In the opinion of management, the unaudited consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring items) which are necessary to present a fair statement of the results for the interim periods. The interim results of operations for the six-month period ended June 30, 2003 are not necessarily indicative of operating results to be expected for the entire fiscal year.

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Mexico, or Mexican GAAP, which differs in significant respects from generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or U.S. GAAP. We are required, pursuant to Mexican GAAP, to present our financial statements in constant Pesos representing the same purchasing power for each period presented. Accordingly, all financial data presented below and, unless otherwise indicated, elsewhere in this prospectus supplement are stated in constant Pesos as of June 30, 2003. See Note 23 to our consolidated financial statements included in our annual report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, for a description of the principal differences between Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP as they relate to us.

Non-Peso amounts included in the financial statements are first translated into Dollar amounts, in each case at a commercially available or an official government exchange rate for the relevant period or date, as applicable, and those Dollar amounts are then translated into Peso amounts at the CEMEX accounting rate, described under Mexican Peso Exchange Rates, as of the relevant period or date, as applicable.

Under Bulletin B-15 of the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, each time we report results for the most recently completed period, the Pesos previously reported in prior periods should be adjusted to Pesos of constant purchasing power as of the most recent balance sheet by multiplying the previously reported Pesos by a weighted average inflation index. This index is calculated based upon the inflation rates of the countries in which we operate and the changes in the exchange rates of each of these countries, weighted according to the proportion our assets in each country represent of our total assets. The following table reflects the factors that have been used to restate the originally reported Pesos to Pesos of constant purchasing power as of June 30, 2003:

		Cumulative Weighted
	Annual Weighted	Average Factor to
	Average Factor	June 30, 2003
1998	1.2581	1.1315
1999	1.0011	1.1302
2000	1.0236	1.1042
2001	0.9900	1.1153
2002	1.0916	1.0217

The Dollar amounts provided below and, unless otherwise indicated, elsewhere in this prospectus supplement are translations of constant Peso amounts at an exchange rate of Ps10.46 to U.S.\$1.00, the CEMEX accounting rate as of June 30, 2003. However, in the case of transactions conducted in Dollars, we have presented the Dollar amount of the transaction and the corresponding Peso amount that is presented in our consolidated financial statements. These translations have been prepared solely for the convenience of the reader and should not be construed as representations that the Peso amounts actually represent those Dollar amounts or could be converted into Dollars at the rate indicated. The noon buying rate for Pesos on June 30, 2003 was Ps10.455 to U.S.\$1.00 and on September 30, 2003 was Ps11.003 to U.S.\$1.00. From July 1, 2003 through September 30, 2003, the Peso depreciated by approximately 5.24% against the Dollar, based on the noon buying rate for Pesos.

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Selected Consolidated Financial Information

As of and for the six months

	As of and for the year ended December 31,						ended June 30, (unaudited)			
	1998	1999	2000	2001	2002	2002	2002	2003	2003	
		(in millions oj	f constant Pes	os as of June	30, 2003 and	Dollars, except	ratios and sh	are and per sh	are amounts)	
Income Statement Information:										
Net sales	Ps 48,335	Ps 51,892	Ps 59,704	Ps 70,806	Ps 69,392	U.S.\$ 6,685	Ps 34,012	Ps 36,502	U.S.\$ 3,490	
Cost of sales(1)	27,948	28,911	33,362	39,827	38,767	3,735	18,601	21,198	2,027	
Gross profit	20,388	22,980	26,342	30,979	30,624	2,950	15,411	15,304	1,463	
Operating expenses	7,196	7,540	8,774	14,071	16,726	1,611	7,975	8,007	766	
Operating income	13,191	15,440	17,568	16,908	13,898	1,339	7,436	7,297	698	
Comprehensive financing income										
$(\cos t), net(2)$	(1,480)	(311)	(1,846)	2,706	(3,493)	(337)	(1,062)	(792)	(76)	
Other income (expense), net	(1,704)	(3,191)	(2,489)	(4,265)	(4,129)	(398)	(2,189)	(1,832)	(175)	
Income before income tax,										
business assets tax, employees										
statutory profit sharing and equity										
in income of affiliates	10,007	11,939	13,233	15,350	6,275	605	4,185	4,673	447	
Minority interest(3)	442	606	829	1,568	393	38	182	116	11	
Majority interest net income	8,997	10,453	10,614	12,046	5,517	532	3,587	4,104	392	
Earnings per share(4)(5)	2.37	2.77	2.57	2.82	1.23	0.12	1.93	1.32	0.13	
Dividends per share $(4)(6)(7)$	0.50	0.57	0.66	0.72	0.73	0.07				
Number of shares outstanding										
(4)(8)	3,774	4,098	4,169	4,379	4,562	4,562	4,563	4,846	4,846	
Balance Sheet Information:										
Cash and temporary investments	4,557	3,509	3,273	4.381	3,830	369	4,899	7,436	711	
Net working capital investment(9)	7,151	7,509	9,836	9,539	7,418	715	9,531	7,490	727	
Property, machinery and	7,151	7,507	2,050),55)	7,410	/15),551	7,004	121	
equipment, net	68,797	74,395	95,958	91,435	95.056	9,158	90,760	94,400	9.025	
Total assets	117,161	127,518	167,392	165,989	168,989	16,280	168,169	174,692	16,701	
Short-term debt	12,387	11,071	31,459	10,509	14,777	1,424	11,413	20,912	1,999	
Long-term debt	35,130	35,904	28,775	44,436	46,386	4,469	48,825	40,003	3,824	
Minority interest(3)(10)	14,013			20,203		,	48,823			
	14,015	13,463	25,468	20,203	12,798	1,233	14,279	12,166	1,163	
Stockholders equity (excluding	12 5 12	55 (00	55 776	(2.170	(0.020	5 9(0	64 144	(2.910	6,005	
minority interest) $(11)(12)$	43,543	55,698	55,776	63,170	60,920	5,869	64,144	62,810	,	
Book value per share(4)(8)	11.53	13.60	13.37	14.43	13.35	1.29	14.06	12.96	1.24	
Other Financial Information:										
Operating margin	27.3%		29.4%	23.9%	20.0%				20.0%	
EBITDA(13)	16,628	19,255	21,559	23,069	20,331	1,959	10,565	10,600	1,013	
Ratio of EBITDA to interest										
expense, capital securities dividends and preferred equity										
dividends	2.96	3.50	4.00	4.39	5.23	5.23	5.60	4.93	4.93	
Investment in property, machinery										
and equipment, net	3,652	2,857	4,231	5,224	4,497	433	1,610	1,745	167	
Depreciation and amortization	4,400	4,660	5,194	8,107	8,115	782	3,825	4,039	386	
Net resources provided by	.,	.,	-,-, '	-,,	0,220		2,020	.,	2.00	
operating activities(14)	13,636	16,570	18,485	24,139	17,644	1,700	7,429	5,693	544	

Edgar Filing: CEMEX SA DE CV - Form 424B2										
Basic earnings per CPO(4)(5)	7.11	8.31	7.72	8.46	3.68	0.35	5.79	3.96	0.38	

(footnotes on next page)

As of and for the six months

	ended June 30,						30,
	As of and	l for the ye	ar ended De	(unaudited)			
	2000 2001 2002		2002	2002	2002	2003	2003
U.S. GAAP(15):	(in millions o	of constant F	Pesos as of J	une 30, 2003 a	and Dollars,	except per	share amounts)
Income Statement Information:							
Majority net sales	Ps 59,713	Ps 67,217	Ps 68,045	U.S.\$ 6,555	Ps 33,598	Ps36,128	U.S.\$ 3,454
Operating income	14,533	10,744	10,998	1,060	6,335	6,413	613
Majority net income	9,274	10,754	5,712	550	2,338	3,948	377
Basic earnings per share	2.28	2.55	1.29	0.12	0.54	0.86	0.08
Diluted earnings per share	2.27	2.52	1.29	0.12	0.54	0.84	0.08
Balance Sheet Information:							
Total assets	176,206	165,184	171,489	16,521	170,427	178,378	17,053
Total long-term debt	30,627	39,810	41,692	4,017	44,230	33,725	3,224
Shares subject to mandatory redemption and equity forward obligations(16)						12,196	1,166
Minority interest	7,216	8,114	5,254	506	6,667	4,647	444
Other mezzanine items(16)	24,821	17,195	13,240	1,276	13,906		
Total majority stockholders equity	46,598	49,695	52,285	5,037	51,794	54,568	5,217

(1) Cost of sales includes depreciation.

(2) Comprehensive financing income (cost), net, includes financial expenses, financial income, gain (loss) on marketable securities, foreign exchange result, net and monetary position result.

- (3) In connection with an equity swap transaction involving 24.8% of the shares of our subsidiary, CEMEX España, S.A., the balance sheet item minority interest in 1998 and 1999 includes the value of these shares as if owned by a third party. In September 2000, we terminated this transaction and repurchased the shares of CEMEX España.
- (4) On September 15, 1999, we effected a stock split. For every one of our shares of any series we issued two Series A shares and one Series B share. All share and per share amounts have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to this stock split. Concurrently with the stock split, we also consummated an exchange offer to exchange ADSs and CPOs for our then existing A shares, B shares and ADSs and converted our then existing CPOs into CPOs. As of December 31, 2002, approximately 94.84% of our outstanding share capital was represented by CPOs.
- (5) Earnings per share are calculated based upon the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year, as described in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements included in our annual report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. In accordance with Mexican GAAP, earnings per share as of June 30, 2002 and 2003 were calculated based on net income for the prior twelve-month periods, which amounted to Ps8,502 million and Ps6,035 million, respectively. Basic earnings per CPO is determined by multiplying the basic earnings per share for each period by three (the number of shares underlying each CPO). Basic earnings per CPO is presented solely for the convenience of the reader and does not represent a measure under Mexican GAAP.
- (6) Dividends declared at each year s annual shareholders meeting are reflected as dividends of the preceding year.
- (7) In recent years, our board of directors has proposed, and our shareholders have approved, dividend proposals, whereby our shareholders have had a choice between stock dividends or cash dividends declared in respect of the prior year s results, with the stock issuable to shareholders who elect the stock dividend over the cash dividend being issued at a 20% discount from then current market prices. The dividends declared per share or per CPO in these years, expressed in constant Pesos as of June 30, 2003, were as follows: 1999, Ps0.50 per share (or Ps1.50 per CPO); 2000, Ps1.70 per CPO (or Ps0.57 per share); 2001, Ps2.00 per CPO (or Ps0.66 per share); 2002, Ps2.14 per CPO (or Ps0.72 per share); and 2003, Ps2.20 per CPO (or Ps0.73 per share). As a result of dividend elections made by shareholders, in 1999, Ps294 million in cash was paid and approximately 142 million additional shares were issued in respect of dividends declared for the 1998 fiscal year; in 2000, Ps288 million is cash was paid and approximately 59 million additional CPOs were issued in respect of dividends declared for the 2000 fiscal year; in 2002, Ps2.38 million in cash was paid and approximately 64 million additional CPOs were issued in respect of dividends declared for the 2000 fiscal year; and in 2003, Ps62 million in cash was paid and approximately 99 million additional CPOs were issued in respect of dividends declared for the 2000 fiscal year; and in 2003, Ps62 million in cash was paid and approximately 64 million additional CPOs were issued in respect of dividends declared for the 2001 fiscal year; and in 2003, Ps62 million in cash was paid and approximately 99 million additional CPOs were issued in respect of dividends declared for the 2000 fiscal year; and in 2003, Ps62 million in cash was paid and approximately 99 million additional CPOs were issued in respect of dividends declared for the 2002 fiscal year; For purposes of the table, dividends declared at each year s annual shareholders meeting for each period are reflected as div
- (8) Based upon the total number of shares outstanding at the end of each period, expressed in millions of shares, and includes shares subject to financial derivative transactions, but does not include shares held by our subsidiaries.
- (9) Net working capital investment equals trade receivables plus inventories less trade payables.
- (10) In connection with the preferred equity transaction relating to the financing of our acquisition of Southdown, Inc., now named CEMEX, Inc., the balance sheet item minority interest at December 31, 2002 and at June 30, 2003 includes a notional amount of U.S.\$650 million (Ps6,799 million) of preferred equity issued by our Dutch subsidiary. As described in Recent Developments, on October 15, 2003, we redeemed all of the U.S.\$650 million of outstanding preferred equity using short term debt incurred for such purpose, which we intend to repay using a portion of the proceeds of loans issued under the new U.S.\$1.15 billion senior unsecured term loan facility executed by our Dutch subsidiary on such date that is scheduled to be funded on October 21, 2003. The balance sheet item minority interest at December 31, 2002 and at June 30, 2003 also includes an aggregate liquidation amount of U.S.\$66 million (Ps690 million) of 9.66% Putable Capital Securities, which were initially issued by one of our subsidiaries in May 1998 in an aggregate liquidation amount of

U.S.\$250 million. In April 2002, approximately U.S.\$184 million in aggregate liquidation amount of these capital securities were tendered to, and accepted by, us in a tender offer. In addition, minority interest net income in 2002 and in the first six months of 2003 includes preferred dividends in the amount of approximately U.S.\$23.2 million (Ps240.1 million) and U.S.\$11.9 million (Ps124.5 million), respectively, and capital securities dividends in the amount of approximately U.S.\$ 11.9 million (Ps122.6 million) and U.S.\$3.3 million (Ps34.5 million), respectively.

(11) In December 1999, we entered into forward contracts with a number of banks, who are the selling ADS holders in the offering, covering 21,000,000 ADSs. In December 2002, we agreed with the banks to settle those forward contracts for cash and simultaneously entered into new forward contracts with the same banks on similar terms to the original forward transactions. Under the new forward contracts the banks retained the ADSs underlying the original forward contracts, which had increased to 24,008,313 ADSs as of the settlement date as a result of stock dividends and which further increased to 25,457,378 ADSs as of June 30, 2003 as a result of stock dividends through

June 2003. As a result of this net settlement, we recognized in December 2002 a decrease of approximately U.S.\$98.3 million (Ps1,028 million) in our stockholders equity, arising from changes in the valuation of the ADSs. These ADSs are considered to have been sold to the banks, and, therefore, future changes in the fair value of the ADSs will not be recorded until settlement of the new forward contracts. When we settle these forward contracts in connection with the offering, the purchase price of these forward contracts relating to our ADSs will be recorded as a decrease in stockholders equity.

- (12) We entered into several forward contracts with several banks between October 2002 and January 2003 covering an aggregate of 37,001,700 CPOs, which increased to 40,168,692 CPOs as of June 30, 2003 as a result of stock dividends. These CPOs, which have been transferred by these banks to the trust in connection with the offering, were purchased by these banks in the market, and, therefore, changes in the fair value of these CPOs will not be recorded until settlement of these forward contracts. When we settle these forward contracts in connection with the offering, the forward purchase price of these forward contracts will be recorded as a decrease in stockholders equity.
- (13) EBITDA equals operating income before amortization expense and depreciation. Under Mexican GAAP, amortization of goodwill is not included in operating income, but instead is recorded in other income (expense). EBITDA and the ratio of EBITDA to interest expense, capital securities dividends and preferred equity dividends are presented herein because we believe that they are widely accepted as financial indicators of the our ability to internally fund capital expenditures and service or incur debt and preferred equity. EBITDA and such ratios should not be considered as indicators of our financial performance, as alternatives to cash flow, as measures of liquidity or as being comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies. EBITDA is reconciled below to operating income, which we consider to be the most comparable measure as determined under Mexican GAAP. We are not required to prepare a statement of cash flows under Mexican GAAP and therefore do not have such Mexican GAAP cash flow measures to present as comparable to EBITDA.

								ended June .	30,
		For the year ended December 31,						(unaudited	l)
	1998	1999	2000	2001	2002	2002	2002	2003	2003
			(in millio	ons of constar	nt Pesos as of	^c June 30, 2003	and Dollars)		
Reconciliation of EBITDA									
to operating income EBITDA Less:	Ps16,628	Ps19,255	Ps21,559	Ps23,069	Ps20,331	U.S.\$ 1,959	Ps 10,565	Ps 10,600	U.S.\$ 1,013
Depreciation and amortization expense	3,437	3,815	3,991	6,161	6,433	620	3,129	3,303	315
Operating Income	Ps13,191	Ps15,440	Ps17,568	Ps16,908	Ps13,898	U.S.\$ 1,339	Ps 7,436	Ps 7,297	U.S.\$ 698

- (14) Net resources provided by operating activities equals majority interest net income plus items not affecting cash flow plus investment in working capital excluding effects from acquisitions. In accordance with Mexican GAAP, operating activities include gain and loss from trading in marketable securities, including realized gain or loss from trading in our capital stock.
- (15) We have restated the information at and for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 under U.S. GAAP using the inflation factor derived from the national consumer price index, or NCPI, in Mexico. See note 23 to our consolidated financial statements included in our annual report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, for a description of the principal differences between Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP as they relate to CEMEX.
- (16) For financial reporting under U.S. GAAP, until December 31, 2002, elements that did not meet either the definition of equity, or the definition of debt, are presented under a third group, commonly referred to as mezzanine items. As of June 30, 2003, as a result of the adoption of the SFAS 150 Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity, these elements, which include shares subject to mandatory redemption as well as the cash redemption amount under equity forward contracts in our own shares, are presented as a separate line item within liabilities. These elements, as they relate to us, include our U.S.\$650 million of preferred equity described in note 10 above, our U.S.\$66 million of 9.66% Putable Capital Securities described in note 10 above and our U.S.\$450 million obligation under the forward contracts described in note 11 above, in each case as of June 30, 2003. For a more detailed description of these elements, see notes 14(E), 14(F) and 23(O) to our consolidated financial statements included in our annual report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement.

For the six months

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FIRST HALF RESULTS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our unaudited consolidated financial statements as of and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 included in our current report on Form 6-K furnished to the SEC on October 2, 2003, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. The following discussion should also be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in our annual report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement.

On July 18, 2003, we announced our results for the first six months of 2003. The interim results of operations for the six-month period ended June 30, 2003 are not necessarily indicative of operating results to be expected for the entire fiscal year. The following is a discussion of our results for the first six months of 2003.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2003 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2002

Overview

Summarized in the table below are the percentage (%) increases (+) and decreases (-) in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002 in our net sales, before eliminations resulting from consolidation, sales volumes and prices for the major countries in which we have operations. Variations in net sales determined on the basis of constant Mexican Pesos include the appreciation or depreciation occurred during the period between the country s local currency vis-à-vis the Mexican Peso, as well as the effects of inflation as applied to the Mexican Peso amounts using CEMEX s weighted average inflation factor; therefore, such variations substantially differ from those based solely on the country s local currency:

		Net Sales							
	Approximate currency fluctuations, Variations Variations in constant		in constant	Domestic S	ales Volumes	Export Sales Volumes	Average Domestic Prices in local currency		
Country	in local currency	net of inflation effects	Mexican Pesos	Cement	Ready-Mix	Cement	Cement	Ready-Mix	
Mexico	+12%		+12%	+6%	+16%	-22%	+1%	-6%	
United States	-7%	-1%	-8%	-3%	+5%	N/A	-2%	-1%	
Spain	+4%	+17%	+21%	+6%	+4%	-7%	-2%	+1%	
Venezuela	-10%	+13%	+3%	-29%	-20%	+7%	+15%	+7%	
Colombia	+13%	-16%	-3%	Flat	+32%	N/A	+10%	+1%	
Central America and the									
Caribbean	+36%	-5%	+31%	+24%	+312%	N/A	-6%	-5%	
Philippines	-3%	-3%	-6%	+3%	+87%	+112%	-15%	-16%	
Egypt	-4%	-23%	-27%	-13%	N/A	N/A	+6%	+5%	

N/A = Not Applicable

On a consolidated basis, our cement sales volumes increased 5%, from 30.2 million tons in the first six months of 2002 to 31.6 million tons in the first six months of 2003, and our ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased 15%, from 9.3 million cubic meters in the first six months of 2002 to 10.6 million cubic meters in the first six months of 2003. Our net sales increased 7% from Ps34,012 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps36,502 million in the first six months of 2003 in constant Peso terms, and our operating income decreased 2% from Ps7,436 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps7,297 million in the first six months of 2003 in constant Peso terms.

Net Sales

Our net sales increase of 7% in constant Peso terms during the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002 was primarily attributable to the inclusion of the results of operations of our newly acquired Puerto Rican operations in the first six months of 2003 but not in the first six months of 2002, combined with

higher sales volumes in our operations in Mexico, Spain and Central America and the Caribbean, which were partially offset by a decrease in sales volumes in Venezuela, Egypt and the United States and lower prices in the United States, Spain, the Caribbean Region and the Philippines. Additionally, set forth below is a quantitative and qualitative analysis of the effects of the various factors affecting our net sales on a country-by-country basis.

Mexico

Our Mexican operations domestic gray cement sales volumes increased 6% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, and ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased 16% over the same periods. The increase in sales volumes resulted primarily from increased demand in the residential construction sector and in the public sector. However, lower ready-mix concrete prices in Mexico partially offset the sales volumes increases. The average domestic cement price in Mexico increased 1% in constant Peso terms in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002 (2% in nominal Peso terms). The average ready-mix concrete price decreased 6% in constant Peso terms (5% in nominal Peso terms) over the same periods due to increased competition.

The increase in our domestic cement sales volumes was also partially offset by a significant decrease in cement export volumes. Our Mexican operations cement export volumes, which represented 6% of our Mexican cement sales volumes in the first six months of 2003, decreased 22% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002 due mainly to the weakness of the U.S. market, our most important foreign consumer. Of our Mexican operations cement export volumes during the first six months of 2003, 70% was shipped to the United States, 29% to Central America and the Caribbean and 1% to South America.

As a result of the increase in domestic cement sales volumes and ready-mix concrete sales volumes, net sales in Mexico, in constant Peso terms using Mexican inflation, increased 12% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, despite the decline in cement export volumes and average ready-mix concrete prices.

United States

Our United States operations cement sales volumes, which include cement purchased from our other operations, decreased 3% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, and ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased 5% over the same periods. The decrease in cement sales volumes is attributable to the general weakness of the United States economy as well as decreased demand in most of our United States markets as a result of unfavorable weather conditions, mostly during February, March, April and May of 2003. Industrial and commercial construction declined as a result of continued weakness in the manufacturing and commercial sectors of the economy, while the cement-intensive public works sector, in particular highway construction, our strongest source of cement demand, also declined. In addition, the average sales price of cement decreased 2% in Dollar terms during the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, and the average price of ready-mix concrete decreased 1% in Dollar terms over the same periods.

As a result of the decline in cement sales volumes and average cement and ready-mix concrete prices, net sales in the United States declined 7% in U.S. Dollar terms in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, despite an increase in ready-mix concrete sales volumes.

Our Spanish operations domestic cement sales volumes increased 6% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, and ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased 4% over the same periods. The increase in sales volumes was driven by strong residential construction activity which benefited from the low interest rate environment and increased spending in public works. Our Spanish operations cement export volumes, which represented 3% of our Spanish cement sales volumes in the first six months of 2003, decreased 7% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002. Of our Spanish operations total cement export volumes in the first six months of 2003, accessed 7% in the first six months of 2003, 22% was shipped to Europe and the Middle East, 31% to Africa, and 47% to the United States. In addition, the average sales price of cement

decreased 2% in Euro terms during the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, and the average price of ready-mix concrete increased 1% in Euro terms over the same periods.

As a result of the increases in domestic cement sales volumes and ready-mix concrete sales volumes, net sales in Spain, in Euro terms, increased 4% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, despite the small decline in the average sales price of cement in Euro terms.

Venezuela

Our Venezuelan operations domestic cement sales volumes decreased 29% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, while ready-mix concrete sales volumes decreased 20% over the same periods. The decreases in domestic cement sales volumes and ready-mix concrete sales volumes were mainly driven by the downturn in construction activity in Venezuela as a result of the continuing political and economic turmoil in Venezuela.

Our Venezuelan operations cement export volumes, which represented 58% of our Venezuelan cement sales volumes in the first six months of 2003, increased 7% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002. The increase in cement export volumes was due to an increased focus on the exports market to offset the contraction of the local market. Of our Venezuelan operations total cement export volumes during the first six months of 2003, 53% was shipped to North America and 47% to the Caribbean and South America.

Our Venezuelan operations average domestic sales price of cement increased 15% in constant Bolivar terms in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, while the average sales price of ready-mix concrete increased 7% in constant Bolivar terms over the same periods.

As a result of the decreases in domestic and ready-mix concrete sales volumes, net sales in Venezuela, in constant Bolivar terms, declined 10% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, despite the increases in the average domestic sales prices of cement and ready-mix concrete in constant Bolivar terms and the increase in cement export volumes.

Colombia

Our Colombian operations domestic sales volumes were flat for the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, while ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased 32% over the same periods. The increase in ready-mix concrete sales volumes was primarily attributable to an increase in public investment in the construction sector, low interest rates and low inflation that led to a moderate demand for housing and private investment and our increased market penetration of the residential construction ready-mix concrete market.

Our Colombian operations average domestic sales price of cement increased 10% in Colombian Peso terms in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, while the average sales price of ready-mix concrete increased 1% in Colombian Peso terms over the same periods.

As a result of the increases in ready-mix concrete sales volumes and in the average domestic sales price of cement in Colombian Peso terms, our net sales in Colombia, in Colombian Peso terms, increased 13% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002.

Central America and the Caribbean

Our Central American and Caribbean operations consist of our operations in Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, Panama, Nicaragua and Puerto Rico, as well as several cement terminals in other Caribbean countries and our trading operations in the Caribbean region. Most of these trading operations consist of the resale in the Caribbean region of cement produced by our operations in Venezuela and Mexico. Our Central American and Caribbean operations domestic cement sales volumes increased approximately 29% (or approximately 24%, excluding our trading operations in the Caribbean region) in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, primarily as a result of our acquisition of Puerto Rican Cement Company, Inc. in August 2002,

which represented approximately 20% of our total cement sales volumes in that region during the first six months of 2003, and strong performance by our operations in Panama and Nicaragua during the first six months of 2003. Our Caribbean region trading operations cement sales volumes increased approximately 98% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, primarily as a result of exports to the United States from the Caribbean region instead of from Venezuela for several months in the beginning of 2003 due to the political and economic turmoil and general labor strikes in Venezuela at that time. Our Central American and Caribbean operations ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased approximately 312% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, primarily due to the inclusion of our Puerto Rican operations, which represented 60% of our total ready-mix concrete sales volumes in the region, higher volumes in Panama and the Dominican Republic and the beginning of ready-mix concrete sales in Costa Rica in the third quarter of 2002.

Our Central American and Caribbean operations average domestic cement sales price decreased 6% in Dollar terms in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, primarily due to decreases in the average Dollar sales prices of cement in the Dominican Republic and the Caribbean of 16% and 18%, respectively, which were partially offset by increases in the average Dollar sales prices of cement in Panama and Costa Rica of 2% and 2%, respectively. Our Central American and Caribbean operations average ready-mix concrete sales price decreased 5% in Dollar terms in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, primarily due to a 5% decrease in ready-mix concrete prices in Panama in Dollar terms and a 30% decrease in ready-mix concrete prices in the Dominican Republic in Dollar terms as a result of a significant depreciation of the Dominican Peso against the Dollar.

As a result of the increase in cement and ready-mix concrete sales volumes, combined with the inclusion of our Puerto Rican operations, net sales in our Central American and Caribbean region, in Dollar terms, increased 36% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, despite the decline in average sales prices of cement and ready-mix concrete in Dollar terms.

The Philippines

Our Philippines domestic cement sales volumes increased 3% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, which was offset by a 15% decrease, in Philippine Peso terms, in the average domestic sales price of cement over the same periods. Our Philippine operations domestic cement sales volumes increase was primarily a result of our commercial marketing programs and our increased market participation in the country due to fewer cement imports from our competitors. The self-construction sector remained our strongest source of cement demand, while demand in the public works sector continued to be weak as a result of reductions in public spending. Our Philippines ready-mix concrete business, which began in 2001, is still under development. Our ready-mix concrete sales volumes in the Philippines increased 87% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, while the average ready-mix concrete price decreased 16% in Philippine Peso terms over the same periods. The increase in ready-mix concrete sales volumes was primarily attributable to a weak economic environment during the first six months of 2002 and new construction contracts in 2003.

Primarily as a result of the decreases in the average cement and ready-mix concrete prices, which were partially offset by an increase in domestic cement and ready-mix sales volumes, our net sales in the Philippines, in Philippine Peso terms, decreased 3% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002.

Thailand

Our Thai operations domestic cement sales volumes increased 20% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, primarily due to increased production efficiency and higher demand as a result of increased construction activity. Our Thai operations average sales price of cement increased 21% in Baht terms during the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002. Cement prices in

Thailand are indirectly controlled by the Thai government.

Primarily as a result of increases in domestic cement sales volumes and average sales prices of cement, our net sales in Thailand, in Baht terms, increased 46% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002.

Egypt

Our Egyptian operations domestic cement sales volumes decreased 13% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002, primarily as a result of the exceptionally high cement volumes in the first six months of 2002 and higher cement prices in 2003, which were partially offset by a strong self-construction sector. Our Egyptian operations average domestic sales price of cement increased 6% in Egyptian pound terms in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002. In addition to being subject to market pressures, cement prices in Egypt are controlled to a significant degree by the Egyptian government as a result of the government s control of almost 50% of the industry s capacity.

As a result of the decrease in cement sales volumes combined with the offsetting increase in domestic cement sales prices, net sales in Egypt, in Egyptian pound terms, decreased 4% in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales, including depreciation, increased 14% from Ps18,601 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps21,198 million in the first six months of 2003 in constant Peso terms, as a result of changes in our product mix, as we had increased sales from our multi-products (*Multiproductos*) strategy and a higher percentage of ready-mix concrete sales in Mexico, as well as increased energy costs. As a percentage of sales, cost of sales increased 3.4% from 54.7% in the first six months of 2002 to 58.1% in the first six months of 2003.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit decreased by 1% from Ps15,411 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps15,304 million in the first six months of 2003 in constant Peso terms. Our gross margin decreased from 45.3% in the first six months of 2002 to 41.9% in the first six months of 2003, as a result of changes in our product mix. The decrease in our gross profit is mainly attributable to the 14% increase in our cost of sales, partially offset by the 7% increase in net sales in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses increased slightly from Ps7,975 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps8,007 million in the first six months of 2003 in constant Peso terms. As a percentage of sales, our operating expenses decreased from 23.4% in the first six months of 2002 to 21.9% in the first six months of 2003.

Operating Income

For the reasons mentioned above, our operating income decreased 2% from Ps7,436 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps7,297 million in the first six months of 2003.

Comprehensive Financing Income (Expense)

Pursuant to Mexican GAAP, the comprehensive financing result should measure the real cost (gain) of an entity s financing, net of the foreign currency fluctuations and the inflationary effects on monetary assets and liabilities. In periods of high inflation or currency depreciation, significant volatility may arise and is reflected under this caption. For presentation purposes, comprehensive financing income (expense) includes:

financial or interest expense on borrowed funds;

financial income on cash and temporary investments;

appreciation or depreciation resulting from the valuation of financial instruments, including derivative instruments and marketable securities, as well as the realized gain or loss from the sale or liquidation of such instruments or securities;

foreign exchange gains or losses associated with monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies; and

gains and losses resulting from having monetary liabilities or assets exposed to inflation (monetary position result).

(Unaudited)

	Six Months Ended June 30,		
	2002	2003	
	(in millions of c	onstant Pesos)	
Net comprehensive financing income (expense):			
Financial expense	Ps (1,668)	Ps (1,993)	
Financial income	309	125	
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net	(702)	(237)	
Gain (loss) on valuation and liquidation of financial instruments	(822)	(431)	
Monetary position gain	1,821	1,744	
Net comprehensive financing income (expense)	Ps (1,062)	Ps (792)	

Our net comprehensive financing income (expense) improved from an expense of Ps1,062 million in the first six months of 2002 to an expense of Ps792 million in the first six months of 2003. The components of the change are shown above. Our financial expense was Ps1,993 million for the first six months of 2003, an increase of 19% from Ps1,668 million in the first six months of 2002. The increase was primarily attributable to a higher level of interest rates swaps at a level above current market rates during the first six months of 2003, which were entered into in an effort to fix our interest rate profile. Our financial income decreased 60% from Ps309 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps125 million in the first six months of 2003 as a result of the decline in interest rates and a lower average level of investments in fixed rate instruments. Our net foreign exchange results improved from a loss of Ps702 million in the first six months of 2002 to a loss of Ps237 million in the first six months of 2003. The foreign exchange loss in the first six months of 2003 is primarily attributable to the appreciation of the Japanese Yen and the Dollar against the Peso and the effect that such appreciation had in our Japanese Yen and Dollar denominated debt. Our gain (loss) from valuation and liquidation of financial instruments improved from a loss of Ps822 million in the first six months of 2003, primarily attributable to significant valuation losses from our derivative financial instruments portfolio (discussed below) during the second quarter of 2002 due to adverse financial market conditions. Our monetary position gain (generated by the recognition of inflation effects over monetary assets and liabilities) decreased from Ps1,821 million under the first six months of 2002 to Ps1,744 million during the first six months of 2003, as a result of the decrease in the weighted average inflation index in the first six months of 2003 compared to the first six months of 2002.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Our derivative financial instruments that have a potential impact on our comprehensive financing result consist of equity forward contracts designated as hedges of our executive stock option programs, foreign exchange derivative instruments, excluding our foreign exchange forward contracts designated as hedges of our net investment in foreign subsidiaries, interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, interest rate swap options (swaptions), other interest rate derivatives, fuel and energy derivatives and third party equity forward contracts. During the first six months of 2003, we suffered valuation losses in our interest rate derivatives, which were partially offset by gains from our currency derivatives, including our cross currency swaps and our equity forward contracts designated to hedge our stock option programs. These valuation losses accounted for substantially all the loss recorded in the first six months of 2003 under the line item gain (loss) on valuation and liquidation of financial instruments presented above. The estimated fair value gain of our equity forward contracts that hedge the potential exercise of our executive stock option programs is primarily attributable to an increase in the market price of our listed securities (ADSs and CPOs). The estimated fair value loss of our interest rate derivatives is primarily attributable to the continuing decline in market interest rates, as CEMEX has

fixed its interest rate profile at a level above current market rates. The estimated fair value gain of our cross currency swaps is primarily attributable to the slight appreciation of the Japanese Yen against the Dollar during the first six months of 2003.

Other Expenses, Net

Our other expenses for the first six months of 2003 were Ps1,832 million, a 16% decrease from Ps2,189 million in the first six months of 2002. The decrease was primarily attributable to a non-recurring expense recorded in the first quarter of 2002 related to the termination of a distribution agreement in Taiwan.

Income Taxes, Business Assets Tax and Employees Statutory Profit Sharing

Our effective tax rate was 11.7% in the first six months of 2003 compared to 11.6% in the first six months of 2002. Our tax expense, which primarily consists of income taxes and business assets tax, increased 12% from Ps488 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps549 million in the first six months of 2003. The increase was attributable to a higher taxable income in the first six months of 2003 as compared to the first six months of 2002. Our average statutory income tax rate was approximately 34% in the first six months of 2003 and approximately 35% in the first six months of 2002.

Employees statutory profit sharing decreased from Ps57 million during the first six months of 2002 to Ps53 million during the first six months of 2003 due to lower taxable income for profit sharing purposes in Venezuela.

Majority Interest Net Income

Majority interest net income represents the difference between our consolidated net income and minority interest net income, which is the portion of our consolidated net income attributable to those of our subsidiaries in which non-affiliated third parties hold interests. Changes in minority interest net income in any period reflect changes in the percentage of the stock of our subsidiaries held by non-affiliated third parties as of the end of each month during the relevant period and consolidated net income attributable to those subsidiaries.

For the reasons described above, our consolidated net income (before deducting the portion allocable to minority interest) for the first six months of 2003 increased 12%, from Ps3,769 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps4,219 million in the first six months of 2003. The percentage of our consolidated net income allocable to minority interests decreased from 4.8% in the first six months of 2002 to 2.7% in the first six months of 2003, as a result of our prepayment in February 2002 of a portion of the preferred equity balance of the preferred equity transaction related to the financing of our acquisition of Southdown, Inc., now named CEMEX, Inc., in 2000 and the repurchase in April 2002 of 73.5% of the 9.66% Putable Capital Securities issued by one of our subsidiaries in May 1998. Majority interest net income increased by 14%, from Ps3,587 million in the first six months of 2002 to Ps4,101 million in the first six months of 2003, mainly as a result of our increase in net sales, the decreases in our foreign exchange loss, in valuation losses on derivative financial instruments and a lower portion of consolidated net income allocable to minority interest, partially offset by the decrease in our monetary position gain and higher income taxes. As a percentage of net sales, majority interest net income increased from 10.5% in the first six months of 2002 to 11.2% in the first six months of 2003.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

References in this Recent Developments section to Ps and Pesos are to constant Mexican Pesos as of September 30, 2003, which are not comparable to the Peso amounts presented in other sections of this prospectus supplement. To make the Peso amounts in this section comparable to other Peso amounts in this prospectus supplement, amounts stated in constant Pesos as of September 30, 2003 may be converted into constant Pesos as of June 30, 2003 by dividing those amounts by 1.0408, the weighted average inflation factor for the three months ended September 30, 2003. This Recent Developments section contains convenience translations of Peso amounts into Dollars at an exchange rate of Ps11.00 to U.S.\$1.00, the CEMEX accounting rate as of September 30, 2003. The noon buying rate for Pesos on September 30, 2003 was Ps11.003 to U.S.\$1.00.

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 and as of June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited), and for years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited), included in our current report on Form 6-K furnished to the SEC on October 2, 2003. This Recent Developments section, which follows the same Mexican GAAP accounting policies, should be read in connection with such financial statements.

On October 9, 2003, we announced our results for the third quarter of 2003. The following table contains a summary of our preliminary unaudited consolidated financial results as of and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2003. The interim results of operations for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2003 are not necessarily indicative of operating results to be expected for the entire year. Following the table is a discussion of our results for the third quarter of 2003. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for a discussion of our results for the first half of 2002.

Unaudited						
As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30,				and for the Three Ended September		
2002	2003	2003		2002	2003	2003

(in millions of constant Pesos as of September 30, 2003 and Dollars,

arount share and nor share amounts)

	except share and per share amounts)					
Income Statement Information:						
Net sales	Ps 54,334	Ps 58,171	U.S.\$ 5,288	Ps 18,934	Ps 20,178	U.S.\$ 1,834
Cost of sales(1)	(29,916)	(33,540)	(3,049)	(10,556)	(11,476)	(1,043)
Gross profit	24,418	24,631	2,239	8,378	8,702	791
Operating expenses	(12,784)	(12,584)	(1,144)	(4,483)	(4,250)	(386)
Operating income	11,634	12,047	1,095	3,895	4,452	405
Comprehensive financing income (cost), net(2)	(3,838)	(2,303)	(209)	(2,733)	(1,479)	(134)
Other income (expense), net	(3,092)	(2,911)	(265)	(813)	(1,004)	(91)
Income before income tax, business assets tax,						
employees statutory profit sharing and equity in						
income of affiliates	4,704	6,833	621	349	1,969	179
Minority interest	378	297	27	189	177	16
Majority interest net income	3,915	5,814	529	182	1,543	140
Earnings per share(3)	1.77	1.64	0.15	1.77	1.64	0.15
Number of shares outstanding (4)	4,559	4,857	4,857	4,559	4,857	4,857
Balance Sheet Information:						
Cash and temporary investments	3,700	4,495	409	3,700	4,495	409
Net working capital investment(5)	10,537	7,203	655	10,537	7,203	655

Property, machinery and equipment, net	97,019	97,969	8,906	97,019	97,969	8,906
Total assets	179,239	178,212	16,201	179,239	178,212	16,201
Short-term debt	20,898	12,248	1,113	20,898	12,248	1,113
Long-term debt	44,363	46,803	4,255	44,363	46,803	4,255
Minority interest(6)	13,321	12,912	1,174	13,321	12,912	1,174
Stockholders equity (excluding minority						
interest)(7)	65,241	68,173	6,198	65,241	68,173	6,198
Book value per share(4)	14.31	14.04	1.28	14.31	14.04	1.28
Other Financial Information:						
Operating margin	21.4%	20.7%	20.7%	20.6%	22.1%	22.1%
EBITDA(8)	16,553	17,303	1,573	5,557	6,270	570
Ratio of EBITDA to interest expense, capital securities dividends and preferred equity						
dividends	5.49	5.19	5.19	5.30	5.67	5.67
Investment in property, machinery and						
equipment, net	3,098	2,874	261	1,423	1,058	96
Depreciation and amortization	6,095	6,474	589	2,114	2,270	206
Net resources provided by operating activities(9)	13,289	11,132	1,012	5,557	5,206	473
Basic earnings per CPO(3)	5.31	4.92	0.45	5.31	4.92	0.45

(footnotes on next page)

- (1) Cost of sales includes depreciation.
- (2) Comprehensive financing income (cost), net, includes financial expenses, financial income, gain (loss) on marketable securities, foreign exchange result, net and monetary position result.
- (3) Earnings per share are calculated based upon the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the preceding 12-month period. In accordance with Mexican GAAP, earnings per share as of September 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited) were calculated based on net income for the prior twelve-month periods, which amounted to Ps7,878 million and Ps7,642 million, respectively. Basic earnings per CPO is determined by multiplying the basic earnings per share for each period by three (the number of shares underlying each CPO). Basic earnings per CPO is presented solely for the convenience of the reader and does not represent a measure under Mexican GAAP.
- (4) Based upon the total number of shares outstanding at the end of each period, expressed in millions of shares, and includes shares subject to financial derivative transactions, but does not include shares held by our subsidiaries.
- (5) Net working capital investment equals trade receivables plus inventories less trade payables.
- (6) In connection with the preferred equity transaction relating to the financing of our acquisition of Southdown, Inc., now named CEMEX, Inc., the balance sheet item minority interest at September 30, 2002 and 2003 includes a notional amount of U.S.\$650 million (Ps7,150 million) of preferred equity issued by our Dutch subsidiary. As described in Recent Developments, on October 15, 2003, we redeemed all of the U.S.\$650 million of outstanding preferred equity using short term debt incurred for such purpose, which we intend to repay using a portion of the proceeds of loans issued under the new U.S.\$1.15 billion senior unsecured term loan facility executed by our Dutch subsidiary on such date that is scheduled to be funded on October 21, 2003. The balance sheet item minority interest at September 30, 2002 and 2003 also includes an aggregate liquidation amount of U.S.\$66 million (Ps726 million) of 9.66% Putable Capital Securities, which were initially issued by one of our subsidiaries in May 1998 in an aggregate liquidation amount of U.S.\$250 million. In April 2002, approximately U.S.\$184 million in aggregate liquidation amount of these capital securities were tendered to, and accepted by, us in a tender offer. In addition, minority interest net income in the first nine months of 2002 and 2003 includes preferred dividends in the amount of approximately U.S.\$17.9 million (Ps192.7 million) and U.S.\$4.8 million (Ps176.0 million), respectively, and capital securities dividends in the amount of approximately U.S.\$10.3 million (Ps110.1 million) and U.S.\$4.8 million (Ps52.8 million), respectively.
- (7) In December 1999, we entered into forward contracts with a number of banks covering 21,000,000 ADSs (each ADS represents five CPOs). In December 2002, we agreed with the banks to settle those forward contracts for cash and simultaneously entered into new forward contracts, with a scheduled December 2003 settlement date, with the same banks on similar terms to the original forward transactions. Under the new forward contracts the banks retained the ADSs underlying the original forward contracts, which had increased to 24,008,313 ADSs as of the settlement date as a result of stock dividends and which further increased to 25,457,378 ADSs as of September 30, 2003 as a result of stock dividends through September 2003. As a result of this net settlement, we recognized in December 2002 a decrease of approximately U.S.\$98.3 million (Ps1,081 million) in our stockholders equity, arising from changes in the valuation of the ADSs. These ADSs are considered to have been sold to the banks, and, therefore, future changes in the fair value of the ADSs will not be recorded until settlement of the new forward contracts. When we settle the new forward contracts, the purchase price of the new forward contracts relating to our ADSs will be recorded as a decrease in stockholders equity.
- (8) EBITDA equals operating income before amortization expense and depreciation. Under Mexican GAAP, amortization of goodwill is not included in operating income, but instead is recorded in other income (expense). EBITDA and the ratio of EBITDA to interest expense, capital securities dividends and preferred equity dividends are presented herein because we believe that they are widely accepted as financial indicators of the our ability to internally fund capital expenditures and service or incur debt and preferred equity. EBITDA and such ratios should not be considered as indicators of our financial performance, as alternatives to cash flow, as measures of liquidity or as being comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies. EBITDA is reconciled below to operating income, which we consider to be the most comparable measure as determined under Mexican GAAP. We are not required to prepare a statement of cash flows under Mexican GAAP and therefore do not have such Mexican GAAP cash flow measures to present as comparable to EBITDA.

		Unaudited						
	For	For the Nine Months Ended September 30,			e Three Month September 30			
	2002	2003	2003	2002	2003	2003		
		(in millions of cor	nstant Pesos as of S	eptember 30, 20	003 and Dollars	;)		
Reconciliation of EBITDA to operating income								
EBITDA	Ps 16,553	Ps 17,303	U.S.\$ 1,573	Ps 5,557	Ps 6,270	U.S.\$ 570		
Less:								
Depreciation and amortization expense	4,919	5,256	478	1,662	1,818	165		
Operating income	11,634	12,047	1,095	3,895	4,452	405		

(9) Net resources provided by operating activities equals majority interest net income plus items not affecting cash flow plus investment in working capital excluding effects from acquisitions. In accordance with Mexican GAAP, operating activities include gain and loss from trading in marketable securities, including realized gain or loss from trading in our capital stock.

Three Months Ended September 30, 2003 Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2002

Overview

Summarized in the table below are the percentage (%) increases (+) and decreases (-) in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002 in our net sales, before eliminations resulting from consolidation, sales volumes and prices for the major countries in which we have operations. Variations in net sales determined on the basis of constant Mexican Pesos include the appreciation or depreciation occurred during the period between the country s local currency vis-à-vis the Mexican Peso, as well as the effects of inflation as applied to the Mexican Peso amounts using CEMEX s weighted average inflation factor; therefore, such variations substantially differ from those based solely on the country s local currency:

		Net Sales						
		Approximate currency fluctuations,	Variations in		stic Sales umes	Export Sales Volumes	U	omestic Prices currency
Country	Variations in local currency	net of inflation effects	constant Mexican Pesos	Cement	Ready-Mix	Cement	Cement	Ready-Mix
Mexico	+8%	-10%	-2%	+1%	+10%	-35%	+2%	Flat
United States	-1%		-1%	+3%	-1%	N/A	-2%	Flat
Spain	+6%	+21%	+27%	+2%	+9%	-39%	-1%	-2%
Venezuela	-13%	+18%	+5%	-11%	-6%	+37%	-6%	+5%
Colombia	+21%	+40%	+61%	+12%	+39%	N/A	+4%	+5%
Central America and								
the Caribbean	+2%	+6%	+8%	Flat	+26%	N/A	+1%	-5%
Philippines	+22%	-2%	+20%	-8%	+80%	+65%	+26%	-4%
Egypt	+44%	-40%	+4%	+1%	+130%	N/A	+26%	+19%
N/A		= Not Appl	icable					

On a consolidated basis, our cement sales volumes increased 5%, from 16.0 million tons in the third quarter of 2002 to 16.9 million tons in the third quarter of 2003, and our ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased 10%, from 5.0 million cubic meters in the third quarter of 2002 to 5.6 million cubic meters in the third quarter of 2003. Our net sales increased 7% from Ps18,934 million in the third quarter of 2002 to Ps20,178 million in the third quarter of 2003 in constant Peso terms, and our operating income increased 14% from Ps3,895 million in the third quarter of 2003 in constant Peso terms.

Net Sales

Our net sales increase of 7% in constant Peso terms during the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002 was primarily attributable to higher sales volumes in our operations in most of our markets, which were partially offset by a decrease in sales volumes in Venezuela and lower prices in the United States, Spain, Venezuela and the Central America and Caribbean region. Additionally, set forth below is a quantitative and qualitative analysis of the effects of the various factors affecting our net sales on a country-by-country basis.

Mexico

Our Mexican operations domestic gray cement sales volumes increased 1% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, and ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased 10% over the same periods. The increase in sales volumes resulted primarily from an increase in government spending on infrastructure projects and low-income housing, which was partially offset by unfavorable weather conditions, mostly during August and September, and lower ready-mix concrete prices. The average domestic cement price in Mexico increased 2% in constant Peso terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002 (6% in nominal Peso terms). The average ready-mix concrete price remained flat in constant Peso terms (and increased 4% in nominal Peso terms) over the same periods.

The increase in our domestic cement sales volumes was also partially offset by a significant decrease in cement export volumes. Our Mexican operations cement export volumes, which represented 5% of our Mexican

cement sales volumes in the third quarter of 2003, decreased 35% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002 primarily due to the weakness of the U.S. market, our most important foreign consumer. Of our Mexican operations cement export volumes during the third quarter of 2003, 71.5% was shipped to the United States, 27.2% to Central America and the Caribbean and 1.3% to South America.

As a result of the increase in domestic cement sales volumes and ready-mix concrete sales volumes, net sales in Mexico, in constant Peso terms using Mexican inflation, increased 8% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, despite the decline in cement export volumes.

United States

Our United States operations cement sales volumes, which include cement purchased from our other operations, increased 3% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, and ready-mix concrete sales volumes decreased 1% over the same periods. The increase in cement sales volumes is primarily due to pent up demand built during the second quarter of 2003 as a result of unfavorable weather conditions in the Southeast as well as increased demand in the Midwest. The average sales price of cement decreased 2% in Dollar terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, and the average price of ready-mix concrete remained flat in Dollar terms over the same periods.

As a result of the decreases in ready-mix concrete sales volumes and in the average cement sales price, net sales in the United States declined 1% in U.S. Dollar terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, despite the increase in cement sales volumes.

Spain

Our Spanish operations domestic cement sales volumes increased 2% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, and ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased 9% over the same periods. The increase in sales volumes was driven by strong residential construction activity which benefited from the low interest rate environment and increased government spending on infrastructure projects. Our Spanish operations cement export volumes, which represented 3% of our Spanish cement sales volumes in the third quarter of 2003, decreased 39% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002 primarily due to increased domestic demand. Of our Spanish operations total cement export volumes in the third quarter of 2003, 20.7% was shipped to Europe and the Middle East, 32.4% to Africa, and 46.9% to the United States. The average sales price of cement decreased 1% in Euro terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, and the average price of ready-mix concrete decreased 2% in Euro terms over the same periods.

As a result of the increases in domestic cement sales volumes and ready-mix concrete sales volumes, net sales in Spain, in Euro terms, increased 6% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, despite the small decline in the average sales prices of cement and ready-mix concrete in Euro terms.

Venezuela

Our Venezuelan operations domestic cement sales volumes decreased 11% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, while ready-mix concrete sales volumes decreased 6% over the same periods. The decreases in domestic cement sales volumes and ready-mix concrete sales volumes were mainly driven by the downturn in construction activity in Venezuela and limited government spending on infrastructure as a result of the continuing political and economic turmoil in Venezuela, which were partially offset by increased demand from the self-construction sector.

Our Venezuelan operations cement export volumes, which represented 57% of our Venezuelan cement sales volumes in the third quarter of 2003, increased 37% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002. The increase in cement export volumes was due to an increased focus on the exports market to offset the contraction of the local market. Of our Venezuelan operations total cement export volumes during the third quarter of 2003, 66% was shipped to North America and 34% to the Caribbean and South America.

```
S-26
```

Our Venezuelan operations average domestic sales price of cement decreased 6% in constant Bolivar terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, while the average sales price of ready-mix concrete increased 5% in constant Bolivar terms over the same periods.

As a result of the decreases in domestic cement and ready-mix concrete sales volumes, net sales in Venezuela, in constant Bolivar terms, declined 13% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, despite the increases in the average domestic sales price of ready-mix concrete in constant Bolivar terms and the increase in cement export volumes.

Colombia

Our Colombian operations domestic sales volumes increased 12% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, while ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased 39% over the same periods. The increases in domestic cement and ready-mix concrete sales volumes was primarily attributable to an increase in government spending on infrastructure, particularly on transportation, as well as increased demand from the private residential construction sector.

Our Colombian operations average domestic sales price of cement increased 4% in Colombian Peso terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, while the average sales price of ready-mix concrete increased 5% in Colombian Peso terms over the same periods.

As a result of the increases in domestic cement and ready-mix concrete sales volumes and the increases in the average domestic sales prices of cement and ready-mix concrete in Colombian Peso terms, net sales in Colombia, in Colombian Peso terms, increased 21% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002.

Central America and the Caribbean

Our Central American and Caribbean operations consist of our operations in Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, Panama, Nicaragua and Puerto Rico, as well as several cement terminals in other Caribbean countries and our trading operations in the Caribbean region. Most of these trading operations consist of the resale in the Caribbean region of cement produced by our operations in Venezuela and Mexico. Our Central American and Caribbean operations domestic cement sales volumes increased approximately 2% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, primarily as a result of the inclusion of our Puerto Rican operations in our consolidated results for the entire third quarter of 2003 (representing approximately 21% of our total cement sales volume in the region during the quarter) and just two months (August and September) for 2002. Excluding our trading operations in the Caribbean region, domestic cement sales volumes were flat in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, primarily as a result of the third quarter of 2002, primarily as a result of the third quarter of 2002. Our Caribbean region trading operations cement sales volumes increased approximately 27% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, primarily as a result of increased sales of white cement to several Central American countries during the third quarter of 2003. Our Central American and Caribbean operations ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased approximately 26% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2003. Our Central American and Caribbean operations ready-mix concrete sales volumes increased approximately 26% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2003 compared to t

Our Central American and Caribbean operations average domestic cement sales price increased 1% in Dollar terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002. Our Central American and Caribbean operations average ready-mix concrete sales price decreased 5% in

Dollar terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, primarily due to a 32% decrease in ready-mix concrete prices in the Dominican Republic in Dollar terms as a result of a significant depreciation of the Dominican Peso against the Dollar and an overall decrease in ready-mix concrete prices in the Caribbean region in Dollar terms.

As a result of the increases in ready-mix concrete sales volumes and in the average cement sales price, net sales in our Central American and Caribbean region, in Dollar terms, increased 2% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, despite the decline in average sales price of ready-mix concrete in Dollar terms.

The Philippines

Our Philippine operations domestic cement sales volumes decreased 8% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, primarily as a result of decreased demand in the public works sector due to reductions in government spending on infrastructure, which was offset by a 26% increase, in Philippine Peso terms, in the average domestic sales price of cement over the same periods. Our Philippine operations ready-mix concrete business, which began in 2001, is still under development. Our ready-mix concrete sales volumes in the Philippines increased 80% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, while the average ready-mix concrete price decreased 4% in Philippine Peso terms over the same periods. The increase in ready-mix concrete sales volumes was primarily attributable to a weak economic environment during the third quarter of 2002 and new construction contracts in 2003.

As a result of the increases in ready-mix concrete sales volumes and in the average cement sales price, which were partially offset by decreases in domestic cement volumes and in the average ready-mix concrete sales price, net sales in the Philippines, in Philippine Peso terms, increased 22% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002.

Thailand

Our Thai operations domestic cement sales volumes increased 5% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, primarily due to increased government spending on infrastructure projects. Our Thai operations average sales price of cement increased 16% in Baht terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002. Cement prices in Thailand are indirectly controlled by the Thai government.

As a result of the increases in domestic cement sales volumes and in the average cement sales price, net sales in Thailand, in Baht terms, increased 22% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002.

Egypt

Our Egyptian operations domestic cement sales volumes increased 1% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, primarily as a result of increased government spending on infrastructure, which was partially offset by decreased demand in the commercial and tourism sectors. Our Egyptian operations average domestic sales price of cement increased 25% in Egyptian pound terms in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, primarily as a result of our effort to maintain cement prices in Dollar terms. In addition to being subject to market pressures, cement prices in Egypt are controlled to a significant degree by the Egyptian government as a result of the government s control of almost 50% of the industry s capacity.

As a result of the increases in cement sales volumes and in domestic cement sales prices, net sales in Egypt, in Egyptian pound terms, increased 44% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales, including depreciation, increased 9% from Ps10,556 million in the third quarter of 2002 to Ps11,476 million in the third quarter of 2003 in constant Peso terms, primarily as a result of a higher percentage of ready-mix concrete sales, which have a higher cost of sales as compared to cement, as well as increased energy and insurance costs. As a percentage of sales, cost of sales increased 1.1% from 55.8% in the third quarter of 2002 to 56.9% in the third quarter of 2003.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit increased by 4% from Ps8,378 million in the third quarter of 2002 to Ps8,702 million in the third quarter of 2003 in constant Peso terms. Our gross margin decreased from 44.2% in the third quarter of 2002 to 43.1% in the third quarter of 2003, as a result of the changes in our product mix described above. The increase in our gross profit is primarily attributable to the 7% increase in our net sales in the third quarter of 2002, partially offset by the 9% increase in our cost of sales in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses decreased 5% from Ps4,483 million in the third quarter of 2002 to Ps4,250 million in the third quarter of 2003 in constant Peso terms, primarily as a result of our continuing cost-reduction efforts, including reductions in corporate overhead and travel expenses. As a percentage of sales, our operating expenses decreased from 23.7% in the third quarter of 2002 to 21.1% in the third quarter of 2003.

Operating Income

For the reasons mentioned above, our operating income increased 14% from Ps3,895 million in the third quarter of 2002 to Ps4,452 million in the third quarter of 2003.

Comprehensive Financing Income (Expense)

Pursuant to Mexican GAAP, the comprehensive financing result should measure the real cost (gain) of an entity s financing, net of the foreign currency fluctuations and the inflationary effects on monetary assets and liabilities. In periods of high inflation or currency depreciation, significant volatility may arise and is reflected under this caption. For presentation purposes, comprehensive financing income (expense) includes:

financial or interest expense on borrowed funds;

financial income on cash and temporary investments;

appreciation or depreciation resulting from the valuation of financial instruments, including derivative instruments and marketable securities, as well as the realized gain or loss from the sale or liquidation of such instruments or securities;

foreign exchange gains or losses associated with monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies; and

gains and losses resulting from having monetary liabilities or assets exposed to inflation (monetary position result).

	(Unau	(Unaudited) Three Months Ended September 30,		
	2002	2003		
	,	of constant sos)		
Net comprehensive financing income (expense):				
Financial expense	Ps (974)	Ps (1,029)		
Financial income	103	23		
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net	(62)	(1,295)		
Gain (loss) on valuation and liquidation of financial instruments	(2,714)	71		
Monetary position gain	914	751		
Net comprehensive financing income (expense)	Ps (2,733)	Ps (1,479)		

Our net comprehensive financing income (expense) improved from an expense of Ps2,733 million in the third quarter of 2002 to an expense of Ps1,479 million in the third quarter of 2003. The components of the change are shown above. Our financial expense was Ps1,029 million for the third quarter of 2003, an increase of 6%

from Ps974 million in the third quarter of 2002. The increase was primarily attributable to a higher level of interest rates swaps at a level above current market rates during the third quarter of 2003, which were entered into in an effort to fix our interest rate profile. Our financial income decreased 77% from Ps103 million in the third quarter of 2002 to Ps23 million in the third quarter of 2003 as a result of the decline in interest rates. Our net foreign exchange results deteriorated significantly from a loss of Ps62 million in the third quarter of 2002 to a loss of Ps1,295 million in the third quarter of 2003. The foreign exchange loss in the third quarter of 2003 is primarily attributable to the depreciation of the Peso against the Dollar and the appreciation of the Japanese Yen against the Dollar as compared to the foreign exchange loss in the third quarter of 2002, which also was primarily attributable to the depreciation of the Peso against the Dollar. Our gain (loss) from valuation and liquidation of financial instruments improved from a loss of Ps2,714 million in the third quarter of 2002 to a gain of Ps71 million in the third quarter of 2003. Our monetary position gain (generated by the recognition of inflation effects over monetary assets and liabilities) decreased from Ps914 million during the third quarter of 2002 to Ps751 million during the third quarter of 2003, as a result of the decrease in the weighted average inflation index in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Our derivative financial instruments that have a potential impact on our comprehensive financing result consist of equity forward contracts designated as hedges of our executive stock option programs, foreign exchange derivative instruments, excluding our foreign exchange forward contracts designated as hedges of our net investment in foreign subsidiaries, interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, interest rate swap options (swaptions), other interest rate derivatives, fuel and energy derivatives and third party equity forward contracts. We experienced valuation improvements in most of these financial derivatives in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002, which accounted for substantially all the gain recorded in the third quarter of 2003 under the line item gain (loss) on valuation and liquidation of financial instruments presented above. The estimated fair value gain of our equity forward contracts that hedge the potential exercise of our executive stock option programs is primarily attributable to an increase in the market price of our listed securities (ADSs and CPOs). The estimated fair value improvement of our interest rate derivatives is primarily attributable to an increase in the interest is in the interest yield curve. During the third quarter of 2003, changes in the estimated fair value of our cross currency swaps did not have a material effect on the result recorded under the line item gain (loss) on valuation and liquidation of financial instruments since most of the effect of such changes is recorded under the line item gain (loss), net (discussed above).

Other Expenses, Net

Our other expenses for the third quarter of 2003 were Ps1,004 million, a 23% increase from Ps813 million in the third quarter of 2002. The increase was primarily attributable to the combined effect of higher expenses from goodwill amortization, higher losses in the sale of worn-out assets and higher anti-dumping duty expense during the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002.

Income Taxes, Business Assets Tax and Employees Statutory Profit Sharing

Our effective tax rate was 12.9% in the third quarter of 2003 compared to 11.7% in the third quarter of 2002. Our tax expense, which primarily consists of income taxes and business assets tax, increased from Ps41 million in the third quarter of 2002 to Ps254 million in the third quarter of 2003. The increase was attributable to higher taxable income in the third quarter of 2003 as compared to the third quarter of 2002. Our average statutory income tax rate was approximately 34% in the third quarter of 2003 and approximately 35% in the third quarter of 2002.

Employees statutory profit sharing decreased from Ps39 million during the third quarter of 2002 to Ps30 million during the third quarter of 2003 due to lower taxable income for profit sharing purposes in Venezuela.

Majority Interest Net Income

Majority interest net income represents the difference between our consolidated net income and minority interest net income, which is the portion of our consolidated net income attributable to those of our subsidiaries in which non-affiliated third parties hold interests. Changes in minority interest net income in any period reflect changes in the percentage of the stock of our subsidiaries held by non-affiliated third parties as of the end of each month during the relevant period and consolidated net income attributable to those subsidiaries.

For the reasons described above, our consolidated net income (before deducting the portion allocable to minority interest) for the third quarter of 2003 increased 364%, from Ps371 million in the third quarter of 2002 to Ps1,719 million in the third quarter of 2003. The percentage of our consolidated net income allocable to minority interests decreased from 50.9% in the third quarter of 2002 to 10.3% in the third quarter of 2003, as a result of higher consolidated net income in the third quarter of 2003 as compared to the third quarter of 2002 and lower net income in Venezuela for the same period as compared to 2002. Majority interest net income increased by 749%, from Ps182 million in the third quarter of 2003, mainly as a result of our increase in net sales, the valuation gains on derivative financial instruments and a lower portion of consolidated net income allocable to minority interests. As a percentage of net sales, majority interest net income increased from 1.0% in the third quarter of 2002 to 7.6% in the third quarter of 2003.

Developments During the Third Quarter of 2003

On August 8, 2003, in connection with an increase in the amount available under our U.S. commercial paper program from U.S.\$275 million to U.S.\$400 million, we entered into a First Amended and Restated Reimbursement and Credit Agreement and a related Depositary Agreement with several lenders. Under the First Amended and Restated Reimbursement and Credit Agreement, the issuing bank agreed to issue an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit in the amount of U.S.\$400 million to provide credit support for the commercial paper program, and the lenders committed to make loans to us in the event of certain market disruptions of up to the same amount. In addition, under the First Amended and Restated Reimbursement and Credit facility for the issuance of standby letters of credit in support of certain of our and any of our subsidiaries obligations, including in support of contingent liabilities arising in connection with forward sale contracts, leases, insurance contracts and arrangements, service contracts, equipment contracts, financing transactions and other payment obligations. The total amount available under the U.S. commercial paper program, the letters of credit and any loans under the First Amended and Restated Reimbursement and Credit Agreement cannot exceed U.S.\$400 million. CEMEX México and Empresas Tolteca de México, two of our Mexican subsidiaries, are guarantors of our obligations under the First Amended and Restated Reimbursement and Credit Agreement.

On September 25, 2003, a subsidiary of CEMEX, Inc. acquired the cement assets of Dixon-Marquette Cement for a total purchase price of approximately U.S.\$84 million, subject to adjustments. Located in Dixon, Illinois, the single cement facility has an annual production capacity of 560,000 metric tons.

Recent Developments Since September 30, 2003

On October 15, 2003, our Dutch subsidiary, New Sunward Holdings B.V., executed a U.S.\$1.15 billion senior unsecured term loan facility which is scheduled to be funded on October 21, 2003. We intend to use a portion of the proceeds of loans issued under the new facility to repay short term debt incurred on October 15, 2003 to redeem the U.S.\$650 million outstanding of the preferred equity transaction relating to the financing of our acquisition in 2000 of Southdown, Inc., now named CEMEX, Inc., that was included in our balance sheet in the item minority

interest. We intend to use the remaining proceeds of loans issued under the new facility to repay U.S.\$400 million outstanding under our Credit Agreement dated June 11, 2001 and to repay other senior debt.

UNDERWRITING

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. is the global coordinator of the combined offerings and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. is acting as representative of the underwriters named below. The combined offerings consist of an offering of 20,282,609 ADSs in the United States and in other countries outside of Mexico and a concurrent offering of the equivalent of 5,217,391 ADSs in Mexico in the form of the underlying CPOs.

Subject to the terms and conditions stated in the underwriting agreement dated the date of this prospectus supplement, each underwriter named below has agreed to purchase, and the selling ADS holders have agreed to sell to that underwriter, the number of ADSs set forth opposite the underwriter s name.

	Number of
Underwriter	ADSs
Citigroup Global Markets Inc.	3,485,848
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc.	3,485,848
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.	1,604,093
ABN AMRO Rothschild LLC	2,005,116
Credit Suisse First Boston LLC	3,007,672
Goldman, Sachs & Co.	802,046
ING Financial Markets LLC	3,485,848
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Inc.	802,046
SG Cowen Securities Corporation	1,604,092
Total	20,282,609

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the underwriters to purchase the ADSs included in this offering are subject to approval of legal matters by counsel and to other conditions. The underwriters are obligated to purchase all the ADSs (other than those covered by the over-allotment option described below) if they purchase any of the ADSs. The selling ADS holders and the trust also have entered into an underwriting agreement with a syndicate of underwriters providing for the concurrent offer and sale of a total of 5,217,391 ADSs in Mexico in the form of the underlying CPOs. The offering described herein and the Mexican offering are each conditioned on the closing of the other.

The underwriters propose to offer some of the ADSs directly to the public at the public offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus supplement and some of the ADSs to dealers at the public offering price less a concession not to exceed \$0.38196 per ADS. The underwriters may allow, and dealers may reallow, a concession not to exceed \$0.10 per ADS on sales to other dealers. If all of the ADSs are not sold at the initial offering price, the representatives may change the public offering price and the other selling terms.

This prospectus supplement may be used in connection with CPOs initially offered in the Mexican offering insofar as such CPOs are resold from time to time in the United States in transactions that require registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

The selling ADS holders and the trust have granted to the underwriters of the combined offerings an option, exercisable for 30 days from the date of this prospectus supplement, to purchase up to 3,825,000 additional ADSs in the form of ADSs or CPOs at the public offering price less

the underwriting discount. The underwriters of the combined offerings may exercise the option solely for the purpose of covering over-allotments, if any, in connection with the combined offerings. To the extent the option is exercised, each underwriter must purchase a number of additional ADSs in the form of ADSs or CPOs approximately proportionate to that underwriter s initial purchase commitment.

The underwriters for each of the offerings have entered into an agreement in which they agree to restrictions on where and to whom they and any dealer purchasing from them may offer ADSs or CPOs, as the case may be. The underwriters also have agreed that they may sell ADSs or underlying CPOs between their respective underwriting syndicates. The number of ADSs or CPOs actually allocated to each offering may differ from the amount offered due to reallocation between this offering and the Mexican offering.

We, our executive officers and directors, have agreed that, for a period of 90 days from the date of this prospectus supplement, we and they will not, without the prior written consent of Citigroup Global Markets Inc., dispose of or hedge any shares of our common stock or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for our common stock. Citigroup Global Markets Inc. in its sole discretion may release any of the securities subject to this lock-up agreement at any time without notice.

This agreement does not apply to:

ADSs, CPOs or shares of CEMEX common stock disposed of as bona fide gifts approved by Citigroup Global Markets Inc.;

any employee benefit plans, including the grant of securities or options thereunder, the delivery of securities pursuant thereto and the disposition by the recipient of any securities so delivered;

our existing appreciation warrants and American Depositary Warrants;

any new forward transactions relating to any ADSs or CPOs underlying the forward contracts we entered into with the selling ADS holders that are not sold in the combined offerings;

any refinancing, refunding, renewal or other roll-over of existing forward contracts that hedge our employee benefit plans;

any purchases of shares of CEMEX Asia Holdings, Ltd. in exchange for our ADSs or CPOs; and

any loans of ADSs or CPOs by us to the underwriters for the Mexican offering in connection with the combined offerings.

Each underwriter has represented, warranted and agreed that:

it has not offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of six months from the closing date, will not offer or sell any ADSs included in this offering to persons in the United Kingdom except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995;

it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, or FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any ADSs included in this offering in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to us;

it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to the shares included in this offering in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom;

no ADSs have been, or at any time hereafter will be, offered sold, transferred, or delivered in or from the Netherlands as part of their initial distribution, directly or indirectly, other than to banks, pension funds, insurance companies, securities firms, investment institutions, central governments, large international and supranational institutions and other comparable entities, including, *inter alia*, large enterprises, which trade or invest in securities in the conduct of a profession or trade; and

it has offered and sold, and will offer and sell, the ADSs included in this offering only in full accordance with the German Securities Sales Prospectus Act (*Wertpapier-Verkaufsprospektgesetz*) and no sales prospectus (*Verkaufsprospekt*) under the German Securities Sales Prospectus Act has been, or will be, prepared in connection with this offering.

Each underwriter has represented, warranted and agreed that no ADSs will be offered, sold or delivered and no copies of this prospectus supplement or any other document relating to the ADSs will be distributed in Italy other than to professional investors *(investitori professionali)*, as defined in Article 31, paragraph 2 of CONSOB Regulation No. 11522 of July 1, 1998 (Regulation No. 11522), in accordance with Italian securities, tax, exchange control and all other applicable laws and regulations, provided however, that any such offer, sale or delivery of the ADSs or distribution of copies of this prospectus supplement or any other document relating to

the ADSs in Italy is (i) made by investment firms, banks or financial intermediaries permitted to conduct such activities in the Republic of Italy in accordance with Legislative Decree No 385 of September 1, 1993 (the Banking Act), Decree No. 58 of February 24, 1998, Regulation No. 11522, as amended, and any other applicable laws and regulations; and (ii) in compliance with any other applicable notification requirement or limitation which may be imposed upon the offer of ADSs in Italy by CONSOB or the Bank of Italy. Any investor purchasing the ADSs in the offering is solely responsible for ensuring that any offer or resale of the ADSs it purchased occurs in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. This prospectus supplement and the information contained herein is intended only for the use of its recipient and is not to be distributed to any third party resident or located in Italy for any reason. No person resident or located in Italy other than the original recipients of this prospectus supplement may rely on it or its content.

No offering document (including the prospectus supplement and any amendment, supplement or replacement thereto) subject to the approval (*visa*) of the *Commission des opérations de bourse* has been prepared in connection with the offering. The ADSs may not be offered or sold to the public in France and neither this prospectus supplement, the Prospectus dated August 27, 2003, the Prospectus dated April 19, 2002, nor any other offering material or information contained therein relating to the ADSs may be released, issued or distributed or caused to be released, issued or distributed to the public in France, or used in connection with any offering in respect of the ADSs to the public in France. The offering shall be made in France only to qualified investors (*investisseurs qualifiés*) acting for their own account as defined in article L. 411-2 of the *French Code Monétaire et Financier* and *Décret* no. 98-880 dated October 1, 1998. The direct or indirect resale to the public in France of any ADSs acquired by such qualified investors may be made only as provided by articles L. 412-1 and L. 621-8 of the *French Code Monétaire et Financier* and applicable regulations thereunder. Persons into whose possession this prospectus supplement, the Prospectus dated August 27, 2003, the Prospectus dated April 19, 2002 or any amendment, supplement or replacement thereto come must inform themselves about and observe any such restrictions. The offering does not constitute a solicitation by anyone not authorized to so act and neither the prospectus supplement, the Prospectus dated August 27, 2003 nor the Prospectus dated April 19, 2002 may be used for or in connection with the offering to solicit anyone to whom it is unlawful to make the offering.

Each underwriter has represented, warranted and agreed that neither the ADSs nor the CPOs have been offered or sold in Spain except in accordance with the requirements of the Spanish Securities Market Law (*Ley 24/1988 de 28 de julio, del mercado de valores*), as amended, and Royal Decree 291/1992, on Issues and Public Offerings of Securities (*Real Decreto 291/1992, de 27 de marzo, sobre emisiones y ofertas públicas de valores*), as amended (hereinafter R.D. 291/92). This prospectus supplement has not been verified nor registered in the administrative registries of the National Stock Exchange Commission (CNMV) in Spain, and therefore no public offering of the ADS or the CPOs shall be promoted in Spain. Notwithstanding that, a private placement of the CPOs or the ADSs addressed exclusively to institutional investors will be carried out in Spain in accordance with the requirements set forth in R.D. 291/92.

The ADSs are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CX.

The following table shows the underwriting discounts and commissions that the selling ADS holders are to pay to the underwriters in connection with this offering. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters option to purchase additional ADSs.

	Paid by Sellin	g ADS Holders
	No Exercise	Full Exercise
Per ADS Total	\$ 0.6366 \$ 12,911,909	\$ 0.6366 \$ 14,848,695

In connection with this offering, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., on behalf of the underwriters, may purchase and sell ADSs in the open market. These transactions may include short sales, syndicate covering transactions

and stabilizing transactions. Short sales involve syndicate sales of ADSs in excess of the number of ADSs to be purchased by the underwriters in this offering, which creates a syndicate short position. Covered short sales are sales of ADSs made in an amount up to the number of ADSs represented by the underwriters over-allotment option. In determining the source of shares to close out the covered syndicate short position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of ADSs available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they may purchase ADSs through the over-allotment option. Transactions to close out the covered syndicate short involve either purchases of ADSs in the open market after the distribution has been completed or the exercise of the over-allotment option. The underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing ADSs in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the ADSs in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of bids for or purchases of ADSs in the open market while this offering is in progress.

The underwriters also may impose a penalty bid. Penalty bids permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession from a syndicate member when Citigroup repurchases ADSs originally sold by that syndicate member in order to cover syndicate short positions or make stabilizing purchases.

Any of these activities may have the effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the ADSs. They may also cause the price of the ADSs to be higher than the price that would otherwise exist in the open market in the absence of these transactions. The underwriters may conduct these transactions on the New York Stock Exchange or in the over-the-counter market, or otherwise. If the underwriters commence any of these transactions, they may discontinue them at any time.

We estimate that the total expenses of the combined offerings, excluding underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately \$1.3 million, and we have agreed with the selling ADS holders that we will pay all expenses of the combined offerings.

Because more than 10% of the net proceeds of this offering, not including underwriting compensation, will be paid to the selling ADS holders, who are affiliates of members of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. that are participating in this offering, this offering is being conducted in compliance with Rule 2710(c)(8) of the NASD. Pursuant to that rule, the appointment of a qualified independent underwriter is not necessary in connection with this offering, as a bona fide independent market (as defined in the NASD Conduct Rules) in the ADSs exists.

The underwriters have performed investment banking and advisory services for us from time to time for which they have received customary fees and expenses. The underwriters may, from time to time, engage in transactions with and perform services for us in the ordinary course of their business.

A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on the websites maintained by one or more of the underwriters. The representatives may agree to allocate a number of ADSs to underwriters for sale to their online brokerage account holders. The representatives will allocate ADSs to underwriters that may make Internet distributions on the same basis as other allocations. In addition, ADSs may be sold by the underwriters to securities dealers who resell ADSs to online brokerage account holders.

The selling ADS holders and CEMEX have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make because of any of those liabilities.

LEGAL MATTERS

Several legal matters in connection with this offering will be passed upon for CEMEX by Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, New York, New York, and for the underwriters by Cleary, Gottlieb, Steen & Hamilton, New York, New York. The validity of the CPOs underlying the ADSs will be passed upon for CEMEX by Lic. Ramiro G. Villarreal, General Counsel of CEMEX, and for the underwriters by Ritch, Heather y Mueller, S.C. Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP and Cleary, Gottlieb, Steen & Hamilton will rely, as to all matters of Mexican law, on the opinions of Lic. Ramiro G. Villarreal and Ritch, Heather y Mueller, S.C. Ritch, Heather y Mueller, S.C. will rely, as to all matters of New York law, on the opinion of Cleary, Gottlieb, Steen & Hamilton. Mr. Villarreal, our General Counsel and secretary of our board of directors, is a holder of our securities, and is a participant in our stock option programs.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements and schedules of CEMEX as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, have been incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement in reliance upon the reports of KPMG Cárdenas Dosal, S.C. and PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent accountants, appearing in CEMEX s amended annual report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, and upon the authority of those firms as experts in accounting and auditing.

PROSPECTUS

CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.

25,457,378 American Depositary Shares

Each Representing Five

Ordinary Participation Certificates

This prospectus relates to the public offering and sale, from time to time, of up to 25,457,378 American Depositary Shares, or ADSs, each representing five Ordinary Participation Certificates, or CPOs, of CEMEX by the selling ADS holders. The ADSs are evidenced by American Depositary Receipts, or ADRs.

The selling ADS holders may sell at any time and from time to time all or a portion of the ADSs held by them.

We will provide the specific terms of any offering of our ADSs by the selling ADS holders in supplements to this prospectus. You should read this prospectus and the accompanying prospectus supplement carefully before you decide to invest in our ADSs and the underlying CPOs.

Our ADSs are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CX and our CPOs are listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange under the symbol CEMEX.CPO.

You should consider the risk factors beginning on page 8 before making an investment decision with respect to our ADSs and the underlying CPOs.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus or the accompanying prospectus supplement is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This prospectus may not be used to sell securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement.

The date of this prospectus is August 27, 2003.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	1 age
	No.
About This Prospectus	1
Where You Can Find More Information	1
Incorporation by Reference	1
Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements	2
The Offering	3
CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.	6
Risk Factors	8
Use of Proceeds	14
Selling ADS Holders	15
Description of Our Common Stock	16
Description of Our CPOs	23
Description of Our ADSs	27
Income Tax Considerations	36
Plan of Distribution	40
Validity of the Securities	41
Experts	41

Neither we nor the selling ADS holders have authorized any dealer, salesperson or other person to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement. You should not rely on any unauthorized information. This prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement do not offer to sell or buy any securities in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful. The information in this prospectus is current as of the date on the cover.

References in this prospectus to CEMEX, we, us or our refer to CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., a Mexican corporation, and its consolidated subsidiarie

References in this prospectus to U.S.\$ and Dollars are to U.S. Dollars, and, unless otherwise indicated, references to Ps and Pesos are to constat Mexican Pesos as of December 31, 2002. Unless otherwise indicated, the Dollar amounts provided in this prospectus are translations of constant Peso amounts, at an exchange rate of Ps10.38 to U.S.\$1.00, the CEMEX accounting rate as of December 31, 2002. However, in the case of transactions conducted in Dollars, we have presented the Dollar amount of the transaction and the corresponding Peso amount that is presented in our consolidated financial statements. These translations have been prepared solely for the convenience of the reader and should not be construed as representations that the Peso amounts actually represent those Dollar amounts or could be converted into Dollars at the rate indicated. The noon buying rate for Pesos on December 31, 2002 was Ps10.425 to U.S.\$1.00.

The CPOs underlying the ADSs being sold pursuant to this prospectus have been registered with the Securities and Special Sections of the National Securities Registry (*Registro Nacional de Valores*) maintained by the Mexican National Banking and Securities Commission (*Comisión Nacional Bancaria y de Valores*), or the CNBV. Registration of the CPOs with the Securities and Special Sections of the National Securities Registry maintained by the CNBV does not imply any certification as to the investment quality of the CPOs, the solvency of CEMEX or the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this prospectus.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, using a shelf registration process. Under this shelf process, the selling ADS holders may sell the ADSs held by them in one or more offerings in any manner described under the section in this prospectus entitled Plan of Distribution. This prospectus provides you with a general description of our ADSs and the underlying CPOs. Each time any of the selling ADS holders sells securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering by the selling ADS holders and the manner in which the ADSs will be offered. The prospectus supplement may also add, update, or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the headings Where You Can Find More Information and Incorporation by Reference.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file reports, including annual reports on Form 20-F, and other information with the SEC pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC that apply to foreign private issuers. You may read and copy any materials filed with the SEC at its Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20459. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Our ADSs are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CX. These reports and other information can also be read at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed by us with the SEC. Any information referenced this way is considered part of this prospectus, and any information that we file after the date of this prospectus with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference into this prospectus the following documents:

Our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed with the SEC on April 8, 2003 and Amendment No. 1 thereto on Form 20-F/A, filed with the SEC on April 25, 2003;

Our current report on Form 6-K furnished to the SEC on August 25, 2003; and

The descriptions of our ADSs, CPOs, series A shares and series B shares contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A (SEC File No. 1-14946), filed with the SEC on September 10, 1999, and any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such descriptions.

In addition, any future filings on Form 20-F made with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, after the date of this prospectus and prior to the termination of the offering of the ADSs, and any future reports on Form 6-K furnished by us to the SEC during such period or portions thereof that are identified in such forms as being incorporated into the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, shall be considered to be incorporated in this prospectus by reference and shall be considered a part of this prospectus from the date of filing of such documents.

We will provide without charge upon written or oral request, a copy of any and all of the information that has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus and that has not been delivered with this prospectus. Requests should be directed to Abraham Rodríguez, Investor Relations, CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., Av. Ricardo Margáin Zozaya #325, Colonia Valle del Campestre, Garza García, Nuevo León, México 66265, Tel: +011-5281-8888-4262 or toll-free: 1-800-317-6000.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement may constitute forward-looking statements, which are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Such statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as may, will, expect, anticipate, estimate, continue, plan or other similar words. These statements discuss future exp contain projections of results of operations or of financial condition or state other forward-looking information. We make these forward-looking statements in reliance on the safe harbor protections provided under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Although we believe these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, statements made regarding future results are subject to a number of assumptions, uncertainties and risks that could cause future results to be materially different from the results stated or implied in this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement. When considering such forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the factors described in Risk Factors appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. Additional information about issues that could lead to material changes in our performance is contained in our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2002, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

This prospectus and the documents incorporated in this prospectus by reference also include statistical data regarding the production, distribution, marketing and sale of cement, ready-mix concrete and clinker. These data were obtained from industry publications and reports that we believe to be reliable sources. We have not independently verified these data or sought the consent of any organizations to refer to their reports in this prospectus and in the documents incorporated in this prospectus by reference.

THE OFFERING

As discussed below, the ADSs that may be sold hereunder were initially acquired by the selling ADS holders pursuant to forward transactions we entered into with a number of banks and other financial institutions in December 1999 in order to hedge our obligations under appreciation warrants we issued at that time and as a result of stock dividends subsequently received by the selling ADS holders in respect of those ADSs. In connection with the originally scheduled termination of those forward transactions in December 2002, we agreed with the banks to settle those forward transactions for cash and simultaneously entered into new forward transactions, with a December 2003 maturity, with the same banks with respect to the underlying ADSs on similar terms to the original forward transactions, as described below. As a condition of entering into forward contracts, we agreed to keep continuously effective a registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part, that registers for resale by the banks these ADSs. We sometimes refer to the banks or others holding the ADSs that are registered for resale under the registration statement as the selling ADS holders.

Background and Purpose of the Offering

In December 1999, we issued to our shareholders, members of our board of directors and other executives 105 million appreciation warrants maturing on December 13, 2002, at a subscription price in pesos of Ps3.2808 per appreciation warrant. A portion of the appreciation warrants was subscribed as American Depositary Warrants, or ADWs, each ADW representing five appreciation warrants.

In November 2001, we launched a voluntary public exchange offer of new appreciation warrants and new ADWs maturing on December 21, 2004, for our existing appreciation warrants and our existing ADWs on a one-for-one basis. Of the total 105 million appreciation warrants originally issued, 103,790,945, or 98.85%, were tendered in exchange for the new appreciation warrants. Both the old appreciation warrants and the new appreciation warrants were designed to allow the holder to benefit from future increases in the market price of our CPOs, with any appreciation value to be received in the form of our CPOs or ADSs, as applicable. The old appreciation warrants expired on December 13, 2002 in accordance with their terms without any payments to the holders.

In order to cover our obligations under the old appreciation warrants and to provide us with financing on terms we believe have been advantageous, in December 1999, we entered into forward contracts with a number of banks and other financial institutions. Under the forward contracts, the banks purchased from us 21,000,000 of our ADSs and 33,751,566 shares of the common stock of Compañía Valenciana de Cementos Portland, S.A., now known as CEMEX España, S.A. or CEMEX España, our Spanish subsidiary, for an aggregate price of approximately U.S.\$905.7 million, or the notional amount. Upon closing of these forward transactions, we made an advance payment to the banks of approximately U.S.\$439.9 million of the forward purchase price, U.S.\$388.1 million of which represented payment in full of the portion of the forward purchase price relating to the CEMEX España shares and U.S.\$51.8 million of which was an advance payment against the forward settlement price. We made additional advance payments to the banks toward the forward settlement price during the life of the forward contracts in accordance with their terms, and as of December 12, 2002, the adjusted forward settlement price was U.S.\$469.3 million.

On December 13, 2002, the termination date of those forward contracts, we agreed with the banks to settle the original forward transactions for cash and simultaneously enter into new forward transactions with the same banks on similar terms to the original forward transactions with respect to the underlying ADSs and CEMEX España shares, with a December 12, 2003 maturity. In connection with the termination of the original forward contracts, we made a final advance payment of approximately U.S.\$20.9 million to the banks toward the forward settlement price, and as of the termination date, the adjusted forward settlement price of the original forward contracts was U.S.\$448.4 million. Under the new forward contracts, the banks retained the ADSs underlying the original forward contracts, which had increased to 24,008,313 ADSs as of the termination date as a result of stock dividends, and the CEMEX España shares underlying the original forward contracts, for which they agreed

to pay us an aggregate price of approximately U.S.\$828.5 million, or the notional amount of the new forward contracts. We agreed with the banks that the purchase price payable to us under the new forward contracts would be netted against the adjusted forward settlement price of the original forward contracts and any advance payments made by us in connection with the closing of the new forward contracts. Upon closing of the new forward transactions, we made an advance payment to the banks of approximately U.S.\$380.1 million of the forward purchase price, U.S.\$285 million of which represented payment in full of the portion of the forward purchase price relating to the CEMEX España shares and U.S.\$95.1 million of which was an advance payment against the forward settlement price. As of December 13, 2002, the forward purchase price of the new forward contracts was U.S.\$448.4 million.

Absent a default under the forward contracts, the banks are required to deliver to us on December 12, 2003 a number of ADSs and CEMEX España shares subject to the forward contracts against payment of the adjusted forward settlement price. As a result of stock dividends through June 2003, the number of ADSs subject to the forward contracts increased to 25,457,378 ADSs. The forward purchase price payable at any time under the forward contracts is the present value of the adjusted forward settlement price. The adjusted forward settlement price is the future value of the notional amount minus the future value of all prepayments under the forward contracts. The forward contracts provide for early delivery of ADSs and CEMEX España shares to us in specified circumstances. We are required to make payments during the life of the forward contracts and upon the occurrence of specified events. During the life of the forward contracts, we are required to make additional periodic prepayments if the current market value of the ADSs and CEMEX España shares subject to the contracts is less than 120% of the mark-to-market of the discounted remaining forward purchase price.

Under the forward contracts, the banks are permitted to sell at any time or from time to time all or a portion of the purchased ADSs and the purchased CEMEX España shares. In particular, we anticipate that the banks would sell ADSs and CEMEX España shares if we were to default on any of our obligations under the forward contracts. In the absence of a default under the forward contracts, the banks have agreed to pay to us an amount equal to any dividends paid on the purchased ADSs upon the maturity or early termination of the forward contracts. In addition, absent a default under the forward contracts, we retain all voting and economic rights with respect to the CEMEX España shares purchased by the banks. Notwithstanding any contractual agreement between the banks and us, any person that purchases ADSs from the banks will be entitled to all dividend, voting, economic and corporate rights with respect to the ADSs purchased by them.

As mentioned above, as a condition of entering into the forward contracts, we agreed to keep continuously effective a registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part, that registers for resale by the banks the ADSs covered by the forward transactions. The banks may sell at any time or from time to time all or a portion of the ADSs pursuant to the registration statement.

We may agree with the selling ADS holders to settle the forward transactions for cash, and the selling ADS holders may sell all or a portion of the ADSs pursuant to the registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part, in order to pay us the cash settlement amount, if any, payable in connection with such agreement. If the forward transactions are settled for cash, we may receive a portion of the proceeds from the sale of ADSs pursuant to this prospectus to the extent such proceeds exceed the amount necessary to satisfy our obligations under the forward contracts. In addition, we may facilitate offers and sales of the ADSs by the selling ADS holders either directly to purchasers or through an underwritten offering, in which case we may be a party to the purchase agreement or underwriting agreement relating to such offers and sales. We may also arrange for the selling ADS holders to sell a portion of the ADSs to banks or other financial institutions in connection with new forward transactions or to a trust in order to hedge our obligations under the new appreciation warrants. In the event any selling ADS holder sells a portion of the ADSs to such new bank or trust, such new bank or trust may resell such ADSs under this registration statement from time to time, in one or more offerings, pursuant to an appropriate prospectus supplement.

For accounting purposes under Mexican GAAP, whether we settle the forward transactions for cash or physically by repurchasing the ADSs, the portions of the forward contracts relating to our ADSs are considered to be equity transactions. Therefore, changes in the fair value of the ADSs have not been and will not be recorded until settlement and the cost of the forward contracts relating to our ADSs will be recorded as a decrease in stockholders equity. With respect to the portion of the forward contracts relating to CEMEX España shares, our obligations to the banks relating to those shares have been offset on our balance sheet against the portion of the forward purchase price that we prepaid to the banks.

Although our obligations under the forward contracts are not treated as debt on our balance sheet under Mexican GAAP, our obligations under the forward contracts are included as debt in the calculation of our debt to total capitalization ratio covenants contained in our principal financing agreements.

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V.

Founded in 1906, CEMEX is the third largest cement company in the world, based on installed capacity as of December 31, 2002 of approximately 80.9 million tons. We are one of the world s largest traders of cement and clinker, having traded over 10.2 million tons of cement and clinker in 2002. We are a holding company engaged, through our operating subsidiaries, primarily in the production, distribution, marketing and sale of cement, ready-mix concrete and clinker. We are a global cement manufacturer with operations in North, Central and South America, Europe, the Caribbean, Asia and Africa. As of December 31, 2002, we had worldwide assets of Ps165.4 billion (U.S.\$15.9 billion). On August 15, 2003, we had an equity market capitalization of approximately Ps82 billion (U.S.\$7.6 billion).

We believe that we are one of the most efficient cement producers in the world. We believe we have achieved this competitive advantage through our significant utilization of technology throughout our entire organization, our superior operating practices, our turnaround expertise in newly acquired operations and our size as one of the largest cement companies in the world.

As of December 31, 2002, our main cement production facilities were located in Mexico, Spain, Venezuela, Colombia, the United States, Egypt, the Philippines, Thailand, Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, Panama, Nicaragua and Puerto Rico. As of December 31, 2002, our assets, cement plants and installed capacity, on an unconsolidated basis, were as set forth below. Installed capacity, which refers to theoretical annual production capacity, represents gray cement equivalent capacity, which counts each ton of white cement capacity as approximately two tons of gray cement capacity. It also includes our proportional interest in the installed capacity of companies in which we hold a minority interest.

	As of December 31, 2002		
	Assets		Installed
	(in billions of	Number of	Capacity
	constant Pesos)	Cement Plants	(millions of tons per annum)
North America			
Mexico	Ps 57.0	15	27.2
United States	44.7	12	13.6
Europe, Asia and Africa			
Spain	21.5	8	10.8
Asia	12.1	4	10.9
Egypt	5.7	1	4.7
South America, Central America and the Caribbean			
Venezuela	7.9	3	4.6
Colombia	6.0	5	4.8
Central America and the Caribbean	10.7	5	4.1
Cement and Clinker Trading Assets and Other			
Operations	71.9		

In the above table, Asia includes our Asian subsidiaries, and, for purposes of the columns labeled Assets and Installed Capacity, includes our 25.5% interest, as of December 31, 2002, in PT Semen Gresik, or Gresik, an Indonesian cement producer. In addition to the three cement plants owned by our Asian subsidiaries, Gresik operated four cement plants with an installed capacity of 17.2 million tons, as of December 31, 2002. In the above table, Central America and the Caribbean includes our subsidiaries in Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, Panama, Nicaragua, Puerto Rico and other assets in the Caribbean region. In the above table, Cement and Clinker Trading Assets and Other Operations includes in

the column labeled Assets our 11.9% interest in Cementos Bio Bio, a Chilean cement producer having three cement plants with an installed capacity of approximately 2.2 million tons at December 31, 2002, and intercompany accounts receivable of CEMEX (the parent company only) in the amount of Ps33.9 billion, which would be eliminated if these assets were calculated on a consolidated basis.

During the last decade, we embarked on a major geographic expansion program to diversify our cash flows and enter markets whose economic cycles within the cement industry largely operate independently from that of Mexico and which offer long-term growth potential. We have built an extensive network of marine and land-based distribution centers and terminals that give us marketing access around the world.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, our net sales, before eliminations resulting from consolidation, were divided among the countries in which we operate as follows:

Executive Offices

We are a Mexican corporation with our principal executive offices located at Av. Ricardo Margáin Zozaya #325, Colonia Valle del Campestre, Garza García, Nuevo León, México 66265. Our main phone number is +011-5281-8888-8888.

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risks and all the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus before making an investment decision regarding our securities. The following risks are not the only risks we face.

Risks Relating to our ADSs

Any sale of the ADSs by the selling ADS holders, or market anticipation of a sale, could cause the price of our CPOs and ADSs to decline.

Under the forward contracts, the selling ADS holders purchased the ADSs from us. A sale of these ADSs to the public could result in a decline in the market price of our CPOs and ADSs. In addition, market anticipation of a sale of ADSs by any of the selling ADS holders may cause the market price of our ADSs to decline. The selling ADS holders also have the right to sell the CEMEX España shares sold to them under the forward contracts, and a sale of those CEMEX España shares could also cause a decline in the market price of our CPOs and ADSs.

Preemptive rights may be unavailable to ADS holders.

ADS holders may be unable to exercise preemptive rights granted to our shareholders, in which case ADS holders could be substantially diluted. Under Mexican law, whenever we issue new shares for payment in cash or in kind, we are required to grant preemptive rights to our shareholders. However, ADS holders may not be able to exercise these preemptive rights to acquire new shares unless both the rights and the new shares are registered in the United States or an exemption from registration is available.

We cannot assure you that we would file a registration statement in the United States at the time of any rights offering. In addition, while the depositary is permitted, if lawful and feasible at that time, to sell those rights and distribute the proceeds of that sale to ADS holders who are entitled to those rights, current Mexican law does not permit sales of that kind.

Risks Relating to Our Business

Our ability to pay dividends and repay debt depends on our subsidiaries ability to transfer income and dividends to us.

We are a holding company with no significant assets other than the stock of our wholly-owned and non-wholly-owned subsidiaries and our holdings of cash and marketable securities. Our ability to pay dividends and repay debt depends on the continued transfer to us of dividends and other income from our wholly-owned and non-wholly-owned subsidiaries. The ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends and make other transfers to us is limited by various regulatory, contractual and legal constraints that affect our subsidiaries.

We have incurred and will continue to incur debt, which could have an adverse effect on the price of our CPOs and ADSs, result in us incurring increased interest costs and limit our ability to distribute dividends, finance acquisitions and expansions and maintain flexibility in managing our business activities.

We have incurred and will continue to incur significant amounts of debt, which could have an adverse effect on the price of our CPOs and ADSs. Our indebtedness may have important consequences, including increased interest costs if we are unable to refinance existing indebtedness on satisfactory terms. In addition, the debt instruments governing a substantial portion of our indebtedness contain various covenants which require us to maintain financial ratios, restrict asset sales and restrict our ability to use the proceeds from a sale of assets. Consequently, our ability to distribute dividends, finance acquisitions and expansions and maintain flexibility in managing our business activities could be limited. As of December 31, 2002, we had outstanding debt equal to

Ps59.9 billion (U.S.\$5.77 billion), not including obligations under preferred stock transactions and under equity derivative transactions in our own stock and in stock of our subsidiaries.

We have to service our Dollar and Yen denominated debt with revenues generated in Pesos or other currencies, as we do not generate sufficient revenue in Dollars and Yen from our operations to service all our Dollar and Yen denominated debt. This could adversely affect our ability to service our debt in the event of a devaluation or depreciation in the value of the Peso or of any of the other currencies of the countries in which we operate.

A substantial portion of our outstanding debt is denominated in Dollars and Yen. This debt, however, must be serviced by funds generated from sales by our subsidiaries. Currently, we do not generate sufficient revenue in Dollars and Yen from our operations to service all our Dollar and Yen denominated debt. Consequently, we have to pay our Dollar and Yen denominated debt with revenues generated in Pesos or other currencies. A devaluation or depreciation in the value of the Peso, or any of the other currencies of the countries in which we operate, compared to the Dollar or the Yen could adversely affect our ability to service our debt. During 2002, Mexico and Spain, our main non-U.S. Dollar denominated operations, generated almost half of our sales (approximately 34% and 14%, respectively), before eliminations resulting from consolidation. In 2002, approximately 24% of our sales were generated in the United States with the remaining 28% of our sales being generated in several countries, with a number of currencies also having material depreciations against the Dollar and the Yen. During 2002, the Peso depreciated 13.2% against the Dollar and depreciated 20.2% against the Yen, while the Euro appreciated 16.1% against the Dollar and appreciated 7.6% against the Yen.

We may not be able to continue our growth if our acquisition strategy is not successful.

A key element of our growth strategy is to integrate our recently acquired operations with existing operations. Our ability to realize the expected benefits from future acquisitions depends, in large part, on our ability to integrate the new operations with existing operations in a timely and effective manner. We cannot assure you that these efforts will be successful with respect to future acquisitions by us. Furthermore, our strategy depends on our ability to identify and acquire suitable assets at desirable prices. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in identifying or purchasing suitable assets in the future. If we fail to make further acquisitions, we may not be able to continue to grow in the long term at our historic rate.

We are subject to restrictions due to minority interests in our consolidated subsidiaries.

We conduct our business through subsidiaries. In some cases, third-party shareholders hold minority interests in these subsidiaries. Various disadvantages may result from the participation of minority shareholders whose interests may not always coincide with ours. Some of these disadvantages may, among other things, result in our inability to implement organizational efficiencies and transfer cash and assets from one subsidiary to another in order to allocate assets most effectively.

Our derivative instruments and other financing arrangements may have adverse effects on the market for our securities and some of our subsidiaries securities, and may adversely affect our ability to achieve operating efficiencies as a combined group.

In recent years, we have entered into several derivative instruments and engaged in other financing transactions involving shares of our capital stock and shares of capital stock of some of our subsidiaries under equity forward contracts as a source of financing and as a means of meeting

Table of Contents

our obligations that may require us to deliver significant numbers of shares of our own stock.

We have equity forward agreements in our own stock, the estimated fair value of which is linked to the market price of our CPOs or ADSs. As of December 31, 2002, the notional amount of our outstanding obligations under our equity forward contracts was approximately U.S.\$1.4 billion, with an estimated fair value

loss of U.S.\$90.6 million. In addition to the estimated fair value loss of our equity forward agreements, a portion of which corresponds to the contracts designated as hedges of our stock option programs which are periodically recorded in our income statements, during 2002 we had losses amounting approximately to U.S.\$98.3 million (Ps1,020.3 million) resulting from the net settlement in connection to the new forward transactions entered to cover our obligations under our appreciation warrants. The decline in the estimated fair value of our equity forward contracts is due to a decrease in the market price of our listed securities (ADSs and CPOs). Pursuant to the terms of our equity forward contracts, if the shares underlying our equity forward agreements suffer a substantial decrease in market value, we could be required to compensate for the decrease in market value. If we default in this obligation, the counterparties to our equity forward agreements have the option of either selling the underlying shares to the market or requiring us to repurchase the underlying shares.

As of December 31, 2002, U.S.\$650 million was outstanding under a preferred equity financing arrangement, which is payable in two tranches in February 2004 and August 2004. Under the terms of the preferred equity financing arrangement, our subsidiary New Sunward Holding B.V. may be liquidated if we do not repurchase the preferred equity, or if we do not make payments on the preferred equity and in other adverse circumstances. Any such liquidation would include the sale of its assets (mainly the CEMEX España shares it holds) at market prices in an amount sufficient to satisfy the liquidation preference of the preferred equity.

As stated above, if we default on the terms of our equity forward or preferred equity agreements, our counterparties may sell the shares underlying these agreements, which may:

dilute shareholders interests in our equity securities;

have an adverse effect on the market for our equity securities;

have an adverse effect on the market for the equity securities of some of our subsidiaries;

reduce the amount of dividends and other distributions that we receive from our subsidiaries;

create public minority interests in our subsidiaries that may adversely affect our ability to realize operating efficiencies as a combined group; and

have an adverse effect on other financing agreements.

Any of these factors could adversely affect the price of our CPOs and ADSs.

We are subject to several anti-dumping rulings that may limit our ability to export cement to the United States.

Our Mexican operations are subject to anti-dumping rulings by the U.S. Commerce Department which may limit our ability to export cement to the United States. Since April 1990, our exports of gray Portland cement and clinker to the United States from Mexico, which represented 4.5% of total sales volume of our Mexican operations in 2002, have been subject to U.S. anti-dumping duties. In addition, importers of gray Portland cement and clinker from Mexico, including our U.S. operations, have been required to pay substantial cash deposits to the U.S. Customs Service

to secure the eventual payment of those duties.

We are disputing some tax claims an adverse resolution of which may result in a significant additional tax expense.

We have received notices from the Mexican tax authorities of tax claims in respect of the tax years from 1992 through 1996 for an aggregate amount of approximately Ps5.2 billion, including interest and penalties through December 31, 2002. An adverse resolution of these claims could materially reduce our net income.

Our operations are subject to environmental laws and regulations.

Our operations are subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment in the various jurisdictions in which we operate, such as regulations regarding the release of cement dust into the air.

Stricter laws and regulations, or stricter interpretation of existing laws or regulations, may impose new liabilities on us or result in the need for additional investments in pollution control equipment, either of which could result in a material decline in our profitability in the short term.

We are an international company and are exposed to risks in the countries in which we have significant operations or interests.

We are dependent, in large part, on the economies of the countries in which we market our products. The economies of these countries are in different stages of socioeconomic development. Consequently, like many other companies with significant international operations, we are exposed to risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, inflation, governmental spending, social instability and other political, economic or social developments that may materially reduce our net income.

In 2002, the largest percentage of our net sales (34%) and total assets (24%), at year-end, were in Mexico. If the Mexican economy experiences a continued recession or if Mexican inflation and interest rates increase significantly, our net income from our Mexican operations may decline materially because construction activity may decrease, which may lead to a decrease in cement sales. The Mexican government does not currently restrict the ability of Mexicans or others to convert Pesos to Dollars, or vice versa. The Mexican Central Bank has consistently made foreign currency available to Mexican private sector entities, such as CEMEX, to meet their foreign currency obligations. Nevertheless, if renewed shortages of foreign currency occur, the Mexican Central Bank may not continue its practice of making foreign currency available to private sector companies and we may not be able to purchase the foreign currency we need to service our foreign currency obligations without substantial additional cost.

We also have operations in the United States (24% of net sales and 19% of total assets in 2002), Spain (14% of net sales and 9% of total assets), Venezuela (4% of net sales and 3% of total assets), Central America and the Caribbean (7% of net sales and 5% of total assets), Colombia (3% of net sales and 3% of total assets), the Philippines (2% of net sales and 4% of total assets), other Asian countries, including Thailand, (2% of total assets) and Egypt (2% of net sales and 2% of total assets). As in the case of Mexico, adverse economic conditions in any of these countries may produce a negative impact on our net income from our operations in that country.

In recent years, Venezuela has experienced considerable volatility and depreciation of its currency, high interest rates, political instability and declining asset values. In February 2002, the government abandoned its policy of locking the Venezuelan Bolivar within an exchange rate band in favor of a free floating exchange rate system. The Venezuelan Bolivar has depreciated considerably following this action and may continue to do so. Additionally, Venezuela has experienced increased inflation, decreased gross domestic product and labor unrest, including general strikes. In response to these events and in an effort to shore up the economy and control inflation, Venezuelan authorities have imposed foreign exchange and price controls on specified products, including cement. Further economic stagnation in the private sector is expected to result as a consequence of these market distortions. These developments have had and may continue to have an adverse effect on the construction sector in Venezuela, as a result of reduced demand for cement and ready-mix concrete, which has adversely affected our sales and net income.

We believe that Asia represents an important market for our future growth. However, since mid-1997, many countries in Asia in which we have made significant investments have experienced considerable volatility and depreciation of their currencies, high interest rates, banking sector crises, stock market volatility, political instability and declining asset values. These developments have had and may continue to have an adverse effect on the Asian construction sector, as a result of reduced demand for cement and ready-mix concrete, which has adversely affected our sales and net income.

We believe that Egypt also represents an important market for our future growth. Rising instability in the Middle East, however, has resulted from, among other things, civil unrest, extremism, the continued deterioration

of Israeli-Palestinian relations and the recent war in Iraq. There can be no assurance that political turbulence in the Middle East will abate at any time in the near future or that neighboring countries, including Egypt, will not be drawn into the conflict. In Egypt, extremists have engaged in a sometimes violent campaign against the government in recent years. There can be no assurance that extremists will not escalate their opposition in Egypt or that the government will continue to be successful in maintaining the prevailing levels of domestic order and stability. Since 2000, the Egyptian government devalued the pound four times, and in January 2003, it decided to let the pound trade as a freely floating currency. Since that time, the Egyptian pound has depreciated significantly against the Dollar. Future depreciation of the Egyptian pound relative to other currencies could create additional inflationary pressures in Egypt by generally increasing the price of imported products and requiring recessionary government policies to curb aggregate demand. On the other hand, if the Egyptian pound were to appreciate against other currencies, this could dampen export-driven growth, thereby weakening the Egyptian economy and indirectly adversely affecting cement demand. The potential impact of the floating exchange rate system and of measures by the Egyptian government aimed at improving Egypt s investment climate is uncertain. The Egyptian Central Bank continues to monitor the exchange rate and reserves the right to intervene without notice. Weakened investor confidence as a result of currency instability as well as any of the other foregoing circumstances could have a material adverse effect on the political and economic stability of Egypt and consequently on our Egyptian operations.

The September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center and the Pentagon temporarily disrupted the trading markets in the United States and caused declines in major stock markets around the world. Since those attacks, there have been terrorist attacks in Indonesia and ongoing threats of future terrorist attacks in the United States and abroad. In response to these terrorist attacks and threats, the United States has instituted several anti-terrorism measures, most notably, the formation of the Office of Homeland Security, a formal declaration of war against terrorism and the recent war in Iraq. Although it is not possible at this time to determine the long-term effect of these terrorist threats and attacks or threats in the United States, including the war in Iraq, there can be no assurance that there will not be other attacks or threats in the United States or abroad that will lead to further economic contraction in the United States has contributed to the uncertainty of the stability of the United States economy as well as global capital markets. The current weakness of the United States budget deficits may have an adverse effect on the public construction sector. Further economic contraction in the United States or any of our major markets could affect domestic demand for cement and have a material adverse effect on our operations.

On November 1, 2001, the provincial administration of the Indonesian province of West Sumatra, in which Gresik s Padang plant is located, announced that it had directed the management of Semen Padang, the wholly-owned subsidiary of Gresik that owns and operates the Padang plant, to report to the provincial authorities and that it intended to spin off the Padang subsidiary. We believe the provincial administration lacked legal authority to direct the affairs of Semen Padang. Since the attempt of the West Sumatra provincial administration in November 2001 to take over the management of Semen Padang, several interest groups opposed to any further sale of the Indonesian government s stock ownership in PT Semen Gresik to us have threatened strikes and other actions that would affect our Indonesian operations. Further attempts to reassume control at Semen Padang, including shareholder-approved changes in management, have been met with resistance and lawsuits by various interest groups. The former management refused to relinquish control and the employees at the Padang facility have not recognized the new management. We intend to defend our interests in Gresik and its subsidiaries, including Semen Padang. We cannot predict, however, what effect, if any, this action will have on our investment in Gresik.

You may be unable to enforce judgments against us.

You may be unable to enforce judgments against us. We are a stock corporation with variable capital, or *sociedad anónima de capital variable*, organized under the laws of Mexico. Substantially all our directors and

officers and some of the experts named in this prospectus reside in Mexico, and all or a significant portion of the assets of those persons may be, and the majority of our assets are, located outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon those persons or to enforce judgments against them or against us in U.S. courts, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the U.S. federal securities laws. We have been advised by Lic. Ramiro G. Villarreal, General Counsel of CEMEX, that it may not be possible to enforce, in original actions in Mexican courts, liabilities predicated solely on the U.S. federal securities laws and it may not be possible to enforce, in Mexican courts, judgments of U.S. courts obtained in actions predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the U.S. federal securities laws.

1	2
1	5

USE OF PROCEEDS

The selling ADS holders will receive the proceeds of sales of the ADSs. The selling ADS holders may apply such proceeds against the final forward purchase price we are obligated to pay under the forward contracts.

In the event that we agree with the selling ADS holders to settle the forward transactions for cash, in which case we may facilitate offers and sales of the ADSs by the selling ADS holders pursuant to this prospectus, we may receive a portion of the proceeds from such sales to the extent such proceeds exceed the amount necessary to satisfy our obligations under the forward contracts.

Unless otherwise set forth in a prospectus supplement, to the extent we receive any proceeds from the sales of ADSs hereunder in excess of the amounts required to settle the forward transactions, we intend to use such proceeds for general corporate purposes, including working capital, the repayment of debt and the expansion of our business through strategic acquisitions as opportunities arise.

SELLING ADS HOLDERS

The selling ADS holders listed in the table below may sell up to the number of ADSs set forth opposite to their respective names. The table sets forth information with respect to beneficial ownership of our common stock by the selling ADS holders as of June 30, 2003. The following information has been obtained from the selling ADS holders.

		Beneficial owners CEMEX common sto to the offerin		non stock prior	CEMEX c	ial ownership of X common stock the offering(2)	
	Number of ADSs that may be	Number of shares of CEMEX common stock represented by ADSs that	Number of shares of common	Percentage of outstanding common	Number of shares of common	Percentage of outstanding common	
	sold in the offering(1)	may be sold in the offering	stock	stock(3)	stock	stock(3)	
Citibank, N.A.	4,750,943	71,264,145	71,264,145	1.47%	0	*	
ING Bank, N.V.	4,750,943	71,264,145	71,264,145	1.47%	0	*	
Deutsche Bank AG London	4,750,943	71,264,145	71,264,145	1.47%	0	*	
Credit Suisse First Boston							
International	4,099,226	61,488,390	61,488,390	1.27%	0	*	
ABN AMRO Special							
Corporate Services B.V.	2,732,818	40,992,270	40,992,270	*	0	*	
Société Générale	2,186,253	32,793,795	32,793,795	*	0	*	
J.P. Morgan GT							
Corporation(4)	2,186,252	32,793,780	32,793,780	*	0	*	

* Less than 1.0%.

(1) Includes, with respect to each selling ADS holder, the number of ADSs such selling ADS holder has received as stock dividends in respect of the ADSs underlying the forward contracts.

(2) Assumes that all the ADSs purchased from us pursuant to the forward contracts and all ADSs received as stock dividends in respect of such ADSs are sold by the selling ADS holders pursuant to the offering and that no other shares of CEMEX common stock owned by the selling ADS holders are sold by the selling ADS holders.

(3) Based on 4,845,934,017 shares of our common stock outstanding as of June 30, 2003.

(4) Although J.P. Morgan GT Corporation was not a party to the forward contracts, it received these ADSs from its affiliate, JPMorgan Chase Bank, one of the banks party to the forward contracts.

In the event a selling ADS holder sells all or a portion of its ADSs to another bank or financial institution, such bank or financial institution may resell such ADSs hereunder from time to time in one or more offerings.

Each of Citibank, N.A., ING Bank, N.V., Deutsche Bank AG London, Credit Suisse First Boston International, ABN AMRO Special Corporate Services B.V., Société Générale, J.P. Morgan GT Corporation and their respective affiliated companies and/or individuals may, from time to time, own or have positions in, or options on, our securities and may also provide advisory services and/or lending or other credit services to us.

In addition, each of the selling ADS holders are affiliates of brokers or dealers, as such terms are defined in Section 3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. However, each such selling ADS holder purchased the ADSs to be resold by it pursuant to this prospectus in the ordinary course of business, and at the time of such purchase, no selling ADS holder had any agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute such ADSs. It is anticipated, however, that in the event of an underwritten offering of ADSs by the selling ADS holders pursuant to this prospectus, affiliates of the selling ADS holders will enter into underwriting agreements with CEMEX and the selling ADS holders in connection with such offering. The specific terms of any such underwritten offering will be reflected in an appropriate prospectus supplement.

DESCRIPTION OF OUR COMMON STOCK

General

We have two series of common stock, the series A common stock, with no par value, or A shares, which can only be owned by Mexican nationals, and the series B common stock, with no par value, or the B shares, which can be owned by both Mexican and non-Mexican nationals. Our by-laws state that the A shares may not be held by non-Mexican persons, groups, units or associations that are foreign or have participation by foreign governments or their agencies. Our by-laws also state that the A shares shall at all times account for a minimum of 64% of our total outstanding voting stock. Other than as described herein, holders of the A shares and the B shares have the same rights and obligations.

In 1994, we changed from a fixed capital corporation to a variable capital corporation in accordance with Mexican corporation law and effected a three-for-one split of all our outstanding capital stock. As a result, we changed our corporate name from CEMEX, S.A. to CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., established a fixed capital account and a variable capital account and issued one share of variable capital stock of the same series for each eight shares of fixed capital stock held by any shareholder, after giving effect to the stock split.

Each of our fixed and variable capital accounts are comprised of A shares and B shares. Under Mexican law and our by-laws, any holder of shares representing variable capital is entitled to have those shares redeemed at that holder s option for a price equal to the lower of:

95% of the market value of those shares based on the weighted average trading price of our CPOs on the Mexican Stock Exchange during the latest period of 30 trading days preceding the date on which the exercise of the redemption option is effective, for a period not to exceed six months; and

the book value of those shares at the end of the fiscal year immediately prior to the effective date of the redemption option exercise by that shareholder as set forth in our annual financial statements approved at the ordinary meeting of shareholders.

If the period used in calculating the quoted share price as described above consists of less than 30 trading days, the number of days when shares were actually traded will be used. If shares have not been traded during this period, the redemption price will be the book value as set forth in the latest year-end financial statements issued prior to the redemption date. If a shareholder exercises its redemption option during the first three quarters of a fiscal year, that exercise is effective at the end of that fiscal year, but if a shareholder exercises its redemption option during the fourth quarter, that exercise is effective at the end of the next succeeding fiscal year. The redemption price is payable as of the day following the annual ordinary meeting of shareholders at which the relevant annual financial statements were approved.

Shareholder authorization is required to increase or decrease either the fixed capital account or the variable capital account. Shareholder authorization to increase or decrease the fixed capital account must be obtained at an extraordinary meeting of shareholders. Shareholder authorization to increase or decrease the variable capital account must be obtained at an ordinary general meeting of shareholders.

On September 15, 1999, we effected a further stock split. For every one of our shares of any series we issued two series A shares and one series B share. Concurrently with this stock split, we also consummated an exchange offer to exchange new CPOs and new ADSs representing the new CPOs for our then existing A shares, B shares and ADSs and converted our then existing CPOs into the new CPOs. As of December 31, 2002, approximately 94.84% of our outstanding share capital was represented by CPOs, a portion of which is represented by ADSs.

As of December 31, 2002, our capital stock consisted of 5,421,340,089 issued shares. As of December 31, 2002, series A shares represented 66.6% of our capital stock, or 3,614,226,726 shares, of which 3,331,300,154 shares were subscribed and paid, 151,182,076 shares were treasury shares, 15,218,400 were repurchased shares

which had been subscribed and paid and 116,526,096 were issued and authorized for distribution pursuant to our stock option plans, but which had not yet been paid. B shares represented 33.4% of our capital stock, or 1,807,113,363 shares, of which 1,665,650,077 were subscribed and paid, 75,591,038 shares were treasury shares, 7,609,200 were repurchased shares which had been subscribed and paid and 58,263,048 were issued and authorized for distribution pursuant to our employee stock option plans, but which had not yet been paid. Of the total of our A shares and B shares outstanding as of December 31, 2002, 3,267,000,000 shares corresponded to the fixed portion of our capital stock and 2,154,340,089 shares corresponded to the variable portion of our capital stock.

As of June 1, 2001, the Mexican securities law (*Ley de Mercado de Valores*) was amended to increase the protection granted to minority shareholders of Mexican listed companies and to commence bringing corporate governance procedures of Mexican listed companies in line with international standards.

On February 6, 2002, the Mexican securities authority (*Comisión Nacional Bancaria y de Valores*) issued an official communication numbered DGA-13813138, authorizing the amendment of our by-laws to incorporate additional provisions to comply with the new provisions of the Mexican securities law. Following approval from our shareholders at our 2002 annual shareholders meeting, we amended and restated our by-laws to incorporate these additional provisions, which consist of, among other things, protective measures to prevent share acquisitions, hostile takeovers, and direct or indirect changes of control. As a result of the amendment and restatement of our by-laws, the expiration of our corporate term of existence was extended from 2019 to 2100.

On March 19, 2003, the Mexican securities authority issued new regulations designed to (i) further implement minority rights granted to shareholders by the Mexican securities law and (ii) simplify and comprise in a single document provisions relating to securities offerings and periodic reports by Mexican listed companies.

On April 24, 2003, our shareholders approved changes to our by-laws, incorporating additional provisions and removing some restrictions. The changes were as follows:

The restriction that prohibits our subsidiaries from acquiring shares in companies that own our shares was amended to remove a condition that our subsidiaries have knowledge of such ownership.

The limitation on our variable capital was removed. Formerly, our variable capital was limited to ten times our minimum fixed capital, which is currently set at Ps36.3 million.

Increases and decreases in our variable capital now require the notarization of the minutes of the ordinary general shareholders meeting that authorize such increase or decrease, as well as the filing of these minutes with the Mexican National Securities Registry (*Registro Nacional de Valores*), except when such increase or decrease results from (i) shareholders exercising their redemption rights or (ii) stock repurchases.

Amendments were made to the calculation of the redemption price for our variable capital shares, which is described above.

Approval by the board of directors is now required for transactions by us or any of our subsidiaries involving: (i) transactions not in the ordinary course of business with third parties related to us or to any of our subsidiaries, (ii) purchases or sales of assets having a value equal to or exceeding 10% or more of our total consolidated assets, (iii) the granting of security interests in an amount exceeding 30% of our total consolidated assets, and (iv) any other transaction that exceeds 1% of our total consolidated assets.

The cancellation of registration of our shares in the Securities Section of the Mexican National Securities Registry now involves an amended procedure, which is described below under Repurchase Obligation. In addition, any amendments to the article containing these provisions no longer require the consent of the Mexican securities authority and 95% approval by shareholders entitled to vote.

Changes in Capital Stock and Preemptive Rights

Our by-laws allow for a decrease or increase in our capital stock if it is approved by our shareholders at a shareholders meeting, as long as the A shares represent at least 64% of our ordinary common stock. Additional shares of our capital stock, having no voting rights or limited voting rights, are authorized by our by-laws and may be issued upon the approval of our shareholders at a shareholders meeting, with the prior approval of the Mexican securities authority.

Our by-laws provide that shareholders have preemptive rights in proportion to the number of shares of our capital stock they hold, before any increase in the number of outstanding A shares, B shares, or any other existing series of shares, as the case may be, except in the case of common stock issued in connection with mergers or upon the conversion of convertible notes and debentures or as set forth in Article 81 of the Mexican Securities law. Preemptive rights give shareholders the right, upon any issuance of shares by us, to purchase a sufficient number of shares to maintain their existing ownership percentages. Preemptive rights must be exercised within the period and under the conditions established for that purpose by the shareholders, and our by-laws and applicable law provide that this period must be 15 days following the publication of the notice of the capital increase in the *Periódico Oficial del Estado*. With the prior approval of the Mexican securities authority, an extraordinary shareholders meeting may approve the issuance of our stock in connection with a public offering, without the application of the capital stock, and the resolution duly adopted in this manner will be effective for all shareholders. If holders of at least 25% of our capital stock vote against the resolution, the issuance without the application of preemptive rights may not be effected. The Mexican securities authority may only approve the issuance if we maintain policies that protect the rights of minority shareholders. Any shareholder voting against the relevant resolution will have the right to have its shares placed in the public offering together with our shares and at the same market price.

Pursuant to our by-laws, significant acquisitions of shares of our capital stock and changes of control of CEMEX require prior approval from our board of directors. Our board of directors must authorize in advance any transfer of voting shares of our capital stock that would result in any person or group becoming a holder of 2% of more of our shares. If our board of directors denies that authorization, it must designate an alternative buyer for those shares, at a price equal to the price quoted on the Mexican Stock Exchange. Any acquisition of shares of our capital stock by a person or group of persons requires prior approval from our board of directors and, in the event approval is granted, the acquiror has an obligation to make a public offer to purchase all of the outstanding shares of that class of capital stock being purchased. In the event the requirements described above for significant acquisitions of shares of our capital stock are not met, the persons acquiring such shares will not be entitled to any corporate rights with respect to such shares, such shares will not be taken into account for purposes of determining a quorum for shareholder meetings and we will not record such persons as holders of such shares in our shareholder ledger.

Our by-laws require the stock certificates representing shares of our capital stock to make reference to the provisions in our by-laws relating to the prior approval of the board of directors for significant share transfers and the requirements for recording share transfers in our shareholder ledger. In addition, shareholders are responsible for informing us whenever their shareholdings exceed 5%, 10%, 15% and 20% of the outstanding shares of a particular class of our capital stock. We are required to maintain a shareholder ledger that records the names, nationality and domicile of all significant shareholders, and any shareholder that meets or exceeds these thresholds must be recorded in this ledger if such shareholder is to be recognized or represented at any shareholders meeting. If a shareholder fails to inform us of its shareholder ledger, and such transaction will have no legal effect and will not be binding on us.

Repurchase Obligation

In accordance with Mexican securities authority regulations, our majority shareholders are obligated to make a public offer for the purchase of stock to the minority shareholders if the listing of our stock with the

Mexican Stock Exchange is canceled, either by resolution of CEMEX or by an order of the Mexican securities authority. The price at which the stock must be purchased by the majority shareholders is the higher of:

the weighted average price per share based on the weighted average trading price of our CPOs on the Mexican Stock Exchange during the latest period of 30 trading days preceding the date of the offer, for a period not to exceed six months; or

the book value per share, as reflected in the last quarterly report filed with the Mexican securities authority and the Mexican Stock Exchange.

Five business days prior to the commencement of the offering, our board of directors must make a determination with respect to the fairness of the offer, taking into account the interests of the minority shareholders and disclose its opinion, which must refer to the justifications of the offer price; if the board of directors is precluded from making such determination as a result of a conflict of interest, the resolution of the board of directors must be based upon a fairness opinion issued by an expert selected by the audit committee in which emphasis must be placed on majority rights.

Following the expiration of this offer, if the majority shareholders do not acquire 100% of the paid-in share capital, such shareholders must place in a trust set up for that purpose for a six-month period an amount equal to that required to repurchase the remaining shares held by investors who did not participate in the offer. The majority shareholders are not obligated to make the repurchase if shareholders representing 95% of our share capital waive that right, and the amount offered for the shares is less than 300,000 UDIs (*Unidades de Inversión*), which are investment units in Mexico that reflect inflation variations. If these conditions are met, we must create a trust as described above and provide electronic notice to the Mexican Stock Exchange. For purposes of these provisions, majority shareholders are shareholders that own a majority of our shares, have voting power sufficient to control decisions at general shareholder meetings, or that may elect a majority of our board of directors.

Shareholders Meetings and Voting Rights

Shareholders meetings may be called by:

our board of directors or statutory auditors;

shareholders representing at least 10% of the then outstanding shares of our capital stock by requesting our board of directors or the statutory auditors to call a meeting;

any shareholder if no meeting has been held for two consecutive years or when the matters referred to in Article 181 of the General Law of Commercial Companies (*Ley General de Sociedades Mercantiles*) have not been dealt with; or

a Mexican court in the event our board of directors or the statutory auditors do not comply with the valid request of the shareholders indicated above.

Notice of shareholders meetings must be published in the official gazette for the State of Nuevo León, Mexico or any major newspaper published and distributed in the City of Monterrey, Nuevo León, Mexico. The notice must be published at least 15 days prior to the date of any

shareholders meeting. Consistent with Mexican law, our by-laws further require that all information and documents relating to the shareholders meeting be available to shareholders from the date the notice of the meeting is published.

General shareholders meetings can be ordinary or extraordinary. At every general shareholders meeting, each holder of A shares and B shares is entitled to one vote per share. Shareholders may vote by proxy duly appointed in writing. Under the CPO trust agreement, holders of CPOs who are not Mexican nationals cannot exercise voting rights corresponding to the A shares represented by their CPOs.

An annual general ordinary shareholders meeting must be held during the first four months after the end of each of our fiscal years to consider the approval of a report of our board of directors regarding our performance and our financial statements for the preceding fiscal year and to determine the allocation of the profits for the preceding year. At the annual general shareholders meeting, any shareholder or group of shareholders representing 10% or more of our outstanding voting stock has the right to appoint one regular and one alternate director in addition to the directors elected by the majority and the right to appoint a statutory auditor. The alternate director appointed by the minority holders may only substitute for the director appointed by that minority.

A general extraordinary shareholders meeting may be called at any time to deal with any of the matters specified by Article 182 of the General Law of Commercial Companies, which include, among other things:

extending our corporate existence;

our early dissolution;

increasing or reducing our fixed capital stock;

changing our corporate purpose;

changing our country of incorporation;

changing our form of organization;

a proposed merger;

issuing preferred shares;

redeeming our own shares;

any amendment to our by-laws; and

any other matter for which a special quorum is required by law or by our by-laws.

The above-mentioned matters may only be dealt with at extraordinary shareholders meetings.

In order to vote at a meeting of shareholders, shareholders must appear on the list that Indeval, the Mexican securities depositary, and the Indeval participants holding shares on behalf of the shareholders, prepare prior to the meeting or must deposit prior to that meeting the certificates representing their shares at our offices or in a Mexican credit institution or brokerage house, or foreign bank approved by our board

Table of Contents

of directors to serve this function. The certificate of deposit with respect to the share certificates must be presented to our company secretary at least 48 hours before a meeting of shareholders. Our company secretary verifies that the person in whose favor any certificate of deposit was issued is named in our share registry and issues an admission pass authorizing that person s attendance at the meeting of shareholders.

Our by-laws provide that a shareholder may only be represented by proxy in a shareholders meeting with a duly completed form provided by us authorizing the proxy s presence. In addition, our by-laws require that the secretary acting at the shareholders meeting publicly affirm the compliance by all proxies with this requirement.

A shareholders resolution is required to take action on any matter presented at a shareholders meeting. At an ordinary meeting of shareholders, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares present at the meeting is required to adopt a shareholders resolution. At an extraordinary meeting of shareholders, the affirmative vote of at least 50% of the capital stock is required to adopt a shareholders resolution, except that when amending Article 22 of our by-laws (which specifies the list of persons who are not eligible to be appointed as a director or a statutory auditor) the affirmative vote of at least 75% of the voting stock is needed. Our by-laws also require the approval of 75% of the voting shares of our capital stock to amend provisions in our by-laws relating to the prior approval of the board of directors for share transfers and the requirements for recording share transfers in our corporate ledger.

The quorum for a first ordinary meeting of shareholders is 50% of our outstanding and fully paid shares, and for the second ordinary meeting of shareholders is any number of our outstanding and fully paid shares. The quorum for the first extraordinary shareholders meeting is 75% of our outstanding and fully paid shares, and for the second extraordinary shareholders meeting the quorum is 50% of our outstanding and fully paid shares.

Rights of Minority Shareholders

Our by-laws provide that holders of at least 10% of our capital stock are entitled to demand the postponement of the voting on any resolution of which they deem they have not been adequately informed.

Under Mexican law, holders of at least 20% of our outstanding capital stock entitled to vote on a particular matter may seek to have any shareholder action with respect to that matter set aside, by filing a complaint with a court of law within 15 days after the close of the meeting at which that action was taken and showing that the challenged action violates Mexican law or our by-laws. Relief under these provisions is only available to holders who were entitled to vote on, or whose rights as shareholders were adversely affected by, the challenged shareholder action and whose shares were not represented when the action was taken or, if represented, voted against it.

Under Mexican law, an action for civil liabilities against directors may be initiated by a shareholders resolution. In the event shareholders decide to bring an action of this type, the persons against whom that action is brought will immediately cease to be directors. Additionally, shareholders representing not less than 15% of the outstanding shares may directly exercise that action against the directors; provided that:

those shareholders shall not have voted against exercising such action at the relevant shareholders meeting; and

the claim covers all of the damage alleged to have been caused to CEMEX and not merely the damage suffered by the plaintiffs.

Any recovery of damage with respect to these actions will be for the benefit of CEMEX and not that of the shareholders bringing the action.

Registration and Transfer

Our common stock is evidenced by share certificates in registered form with registered dividend coupons attached. Our shareholders may hold their shares in the form of physical certificates or through institutions that have accounts with Indeval. Accounts may be maintained at Indeval by brokers, banks and other entities approved by the Mexican securities authority. We maintain a stock registry, and, in accordance with Mexican law, only those holders listed in the stock registry and those holding certificates issued by Indeval and by Indeval participants indicating ownership are recognized as our shareholders.

Redemption

Our capital stock is subject to redemption, on a pro rata basis, upon approval of our shareholders at an extraordinary shareholders meeting.

Share Repurchases

If our shareholders decide at a general shareholders meeting that we should do so, we may purchase our outstanding shares for cancellation. We may also repurchase our equity securities on the Mexican Stock Exchange at the then prevailing market prices in accordance with the Mexican securities law. If we intend to repurchase shares representing more than 1% of our outstanding shares at a single trading session, we must inform the public of such intention at least ten minutes before submitting our bid. If we intend to repurchase

2	1
2	L

shares representing 3% or more of our outstanding shares during a period of twenty trading days, we would be required to conduct a public tender offer for such shares. We must conduct share repurchases through the person or persons approved by our board of directors, through a single broker dealer during the relevant trading session without submitting bids during the first and the last 30 minutes of each trading session and we must inform the Mexican Stock Exchange of the results of any share repurchase no later than the business day following any such share repurchase.

Dire